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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just so people

          3  aren't waiting, the Hunter's Point Development

          4  proposal is being laid over. Land Use Items No. 114

          5  and 115 are being laid over to our meeting in

          6  August. I apologize for that, but that was done

          7  after the schedule was printed. So, if you're here

          8  for that item, it's being laid over until August.

          9                 I'd like to call this meeting of the

         10  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order --

         11  and I just lost quorum.

         12                 Okay, I'll do this a second time. I'd

         13  like to call this meeting on Zoning and Franchises

         14  to order. Joining me this morning are Councilman Al

         15  Vann, Councilwoman Christine Quinn and Councilman

         16  Mike McMahon, and also joining us is the Chair of

         17  the Finance Committee today, David Weprin. There are

         18  a number of items in his district.

         19                 The first item on the agenda is

         20  Preconsidered 20055014 GFY, a resolution amending

         21  Resolution 1043, authorizing DoITT to grant

         22  nonexclusive franchises for the installation of

         23  public pay telephones and associated equipment on,

         24  over and under the property of the City of New York.

         25                 We have Stanley Shor to testify first
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          2  from DoITT.

          3                 Stanley.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SHOR: Good

          5  morning --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SHOR: --

          8  Chairman Avella and members of the Zoning and

          9  Franchises Subcommittee. My name is Stanley Shor. I

         10  am the Assistant Commissioner for Public Pay

         11  Telephone Franchises at the Department of

         12  Information Technology and Telecommunications. Thank

         13  you for the opportunity to testify regarding this

         14  proposed amendment.

         15                 The Department recommends against the

         16  proposed amendment to the language regarding the

         17  term of franchise contracts. The amendment requires

         18  all contracts awarded to be 15 years in length. Such

         19  inflexibility would create many problems for the

         20  Department.

         21                 First and foremost,

         22  telecommunications is an industry characterized by

         23  change. Changing technologies, a changing

         24  marketplace and changing legal and regulatory

         25  environment all make it difficult to predict best
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          2  practices and public interests far into the future,

          3  and for the Council to mandate long franchise terms

          4  in such a context would poorly serve the residents

          5  and businesses of the City.

          6                 In addition, the Council should note

          7  that there are currently 65 different public pay

          8  telephone franchises. I believe that this is an

          9  unprecedented number of franchises for any agency to

         10  administer in a single area.

         11                 The common expiration dates of these

         12  numerous contracts reduces the burden of

         13  administering so many franchises and will help

         14  assure efficient, fair and prudent evaluation of

         15  next steps at the end of the common term.

         16                 By effectively prohibiting the City

         17  from granting new franchises that would match this

         18  common expiration date, the proposed amendment would

         19  make the City's next phase of franchise

         20  decision-making less fair, less efficient and less

         21  comprehensive.

         22                 Furthermore, the Agency's ability to

         23  negotiate the best franchise terms and conditions

         24  for the City often involves discussions about the

         25  length of the term. Removing the length of a term as
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          2  a tool in the agency's negotiating tool box would

          3  limit DoITT's ability to best protect the City's

          4  interests in future franchise discussions.

          5                 Since the City Charter was revised to

          6  incorporate the concept of City Council authorizing

          7  resolutions, the Council has ten times voted for

          8  authorizing resolutions relating to

          9  telecommunications matters. In every one of these

         10  resolutions, relating to widely varied fields, such

         11  as cable television, mobile telecommunications,

         12  fiber optic facilities and pay phones, the Council

         13  has used "not to exceed" language in its length of

         14  term provisions, the very language that the proposed

         15  amendment would delete. It is entirely unclear to

         16  DoITT why language that has served successfully for

         17  so long and in so many different contexts must

         18  suddenly be abandoned.

         19                 It is DoITT's experience that public

         20  pay telephone companies do not generally need

         21  15-year contracts to amortize their initial

         22  investments. Where special circumstances arise that

         23  suggest a long term is appropriate, for example to

         24  incentivise investment in a specific new technology

         25  that may require an unusual capital commitment,
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          2  DoITT should have the ability to grant a

          3  sufficiently long term to advance the appropriate

          4  interests. But to mandate in advance that a maximum

          5  term be granted, regardless of technological or

          6  capital needs, is ill-advised and DoITT recommends

          7  strongly against it.

          8                 The Department encourages you to

          9  reconsider this amendment. I would be happy to

         10  answer any questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         12                 Any questions from Committee members?

         13                 We do have a number of members of the

         14  community representing a number of interests to

         15  speak on this item, as well.

         16                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SHOR: Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will call up

         20  people in terms of panels.

         21                 Steve Fleenor; Gordon Cohen; Paul

         22  Jason. That will be the first panel.

         23                 MR. JASON: Good morning. My name is

         24  Paul Jason. I have been the legal counsel to the

         25  Independent Payphone Association for the past 15
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          2  years. IPANY is a not-for-profit trade association

          3  representing over 75 independent pay phone

          4  operators, who own and operate 24,000 pay phones on

          5  the streets of New York.

          6                 Most of the pay phone franchisees in

          7  New York City are members of our association, and a

          8  significant number of them are minority owned.

          9                 Since the effective date of the

         10  current franchise in 1999, the pay phone industry

         11  has experienced a major upheaval due primarily to

         12  the unanticipated widespread introduction and usage

         13  of cell phone service.

         14                 This reality has forced most pay

         15  phone operators to reevaluate their original

         16  marketing strategies and to seek cost reductions

         17  wherever they may be found.

         18                 In spite of these difficulties, which

         19  have been complicated by an uncertain economy, as

         20  well as the downward pressure created by the

         21  regulated cost of the local coin call, pay

         22  telephones have not met their equal in times of

         23  emergency and/or a crisis.

         24                 Although 50 percent of all New

         25  Yorkers now have cell phones, no one should lose
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          2  sight of the fact that the other half of our fellow

          3  citizens do not. They rely daily on the availability

          4  of public pay telephones for emergency and critical

          5  communications.

          6                 IPANY members provide that vital

          7  public service without subsidy on a 24/7 basis to

          8  all New Yorkers, and especially to those in the many

          9  low-income neighborhoods throughout the City.

         10                 No one can doubt that the chaos of a

         11  day such as 9/11 would have multiplied ten-fold,

         12  were it not for the reliable service provided by pay

         13  telephones, which allowed citizens and visitors

         14  alike to contact their panic-stricken loved ones

         15  from the burning streets of New York.

         16                 It is without dispute that pay phone

         17  operators are providing a critically important

         18  service to the citizens of the City, as well as to

         19  its millions of annual visitors.

         20                 This has been demonstrated over and

         21  over again, most notably in the aftermath of 9/11,

         22  and again after the last Citywide blackout.

         23                 Who can forget the photos of lines of

         24  dazed people waiting to use pay telephones in Lower

         25  Manhattan after the collapse of the Trade Center
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          2  buildings.

          3                 But in order to continue to provide

          4  those services, and to survive economically, in what

          5  has become a highly-regulated industry, it is vital

          6  that pay phone franchisees keep pace with

          7  technological advances and marketing opportunities.

          8                 The day of web telephones, public

          9  Internet terminals and Wi-Fi access points has

         10  arrived. These developments were not, nor could they

         11  have been contemplated during the almost ten years

         12  in which the pay phone franchise structure evolved.

         13  They certainly were not envisioned in the franchise

         14  agreement under which the existing franchisees

         15  currently operate.

         16                 It is of immediate importance that

         17  the existing franchisees be given the ability to

         18  enter into financing programs which will allow them

         19  to meet the challenge.

         20                 To do this, they will need franchise

         21  terms acceptable to their lenders, and it is for

         22  this reason that I urge you to support the proposed

         23  amendment to the authorizing resolution so that the

         24  term of any new franchise granted pursuant to the

         25  resolution shall be for 15 years.
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          2                 Thank you. I'll answer questions. We

          3  have financial people here that will embellish on my

          4  statement.

          5                 MR. COHEN: Good morning, Mr. Chair,

          6  and members of the Committee. My name is Gordon

          7  Cohen, and I am the Managing Partner of Merchants

          8  Capital Partners, LP.

          9                 We're a private equity fund that's

         10  licensed as a small business investment company by

         11  the US Small Business Administration. We make

         12  investments that provide growth capital to a variety

         13  of businesses in the service sector.

         14                 We look for well-managed, middle

         15  market companies with excellent growth prospects. We

         16  have a particular interest in companies which

         17  provide telecommunication services.

         18                 Our fund is a minority investor in

         19  TeleBeam, an expected beneficiary of this

         20  Authorizing Resolution, and a franchisee under this

         21  Authorizing Resolution's predecessor. We have

         22  encouraged TeleBeam to identify new applications for

         23  its pay phone locations, and have been particularly

         24  excited about the opportunity to provide wireless

         25  broadband service by installing Wi-Fi base stations,
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          2  as Verizon is already doing, and also to install

          3  Internet terminals, which we see as the next logical

          4  progression for public communications.

          5                 We support the amendment to the

          6  Authorizing Resolution, acknowledging the obvious

          7  relationship of pay phones to these evolving

          8  technologies and clarifying that these franchisees

          9  are able to provide those services.

         10                 Like any private equity fund, our

         11  responsibility is to make money for the investors in

         12  our fund, including the U.S. Small Business

         13  Administration. The way we do that is usually

         14  through a sale of our investment, once the company

         15  has experienced the growth which our capital has

         16  helped it to achieve.

         17                 While the holding period of our

         18  investments is typically five to seven years, we

         19  have to be confident of the residual value of the

         20  underlying investment at the end of that time

         21  period. To take the case of TeleBeam, for us to

         22  justify the investment in these new technologies, we

         23  need to know that TeleBeam's right to provide these

         24  services will extend well beyond the holding period

         25  of our investment.
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          2                 In this way, equity investors have an

          3  even longer term horizon than do lenders. The lender

          4  needs to get its money back, but in the case of an

          5  equity investor like ourselves, we need to look

          6  beyond the term of the bank repayment, to the

          7  residual value of the business for the next buyer,

          8  or in the case of a recapitalization, for the next

          9  source of financing.

         10                 Clarification that this franchise

         11  will be for a 15-year term is necessary at a minimum

         12  for equity investors like Merchants Capital to

         13  justify the investment in new technology and realize

         14  the fruit of that investment.

         15                 In conclusion, I'd like to encourage

         16  the Committee to support these amendments to ensure

         17  that franchisees under this Authorizing Resolution

         18  are able to raise the necessary capital to bring

         19  expanded communications capabilities and

         20  technologies to New York City's residents, workers

         21  and tourists.

         22                 Thank you for your time, and I'd be

         23  happy to answer any questions.

         24                 MR. FLEENOR: Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman, and Committee members. My name is Steven
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          2  Fleenor. I am a Managing Director of ING's

          3  Acquisition Finance Group. ING is a global financial

          4  institution that offers banking, insurance and asset

          5  management in 60 countries. We are quite large, with

          6  an enterprise value of approximately $180 billion.

          7                 Within ING, my group provides debt

          8  capital to middle market companies to finance

          9  acquisitions by investors, provide growth capital,

         10  as well as working capital financing.

         11                 Since 1992, providing debt financing

         12  for pay telephone companies has been a focus of my

         13  practice. Over the years, I estimate that I have

         14  reviewed as many as 100 requests for such financings

         15  and have arranged more than $250 million of such

         16  debt financings. We have financed the largest

         17  independent pay telephone companies in the US, as

         18  well as regional providers, such as TeleBeam.

         19                 I appear before you today to

         20  encourage the Committee to approve the proposed

         21  amendments to Authorizing Resolution 1043.

         22                 ING has provided financing to

         23  TeleBeam since 1998. TeleBeam is a current

         24  franchisee under Authorizing Resolution 1043's

         25  predecessor and expects to benefit from Authorizing
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          2  Resolution 1043 in the future.

          3                 ING provided all the debt capital

          4  TeleBeam required to build out their pay telephone

          5  network, advancing a certain dollar amount per pay

          6  phone location awarded to the company from New York

          7  City.

          8                 Our credit facility was underwritten

          9  based on the projected future cash flows of the

         10  company as the capital needs required to build-out

         11  the locations far exceed the associated collateral

         12  value. As such, a key consideration for the

         13  extension of our credit facility was the length of

         14  the company's franchise agreement with the City.

         15                 The longer the tenure of the

         16  franchise agreement, the greater the amount we are

         17  capable of lending.

         18                 In short, should the tenure of the

         19  franchise agreement have been less than 15 years, we

         20  would not have been able to advance the amount to

         21  TeleBeam for their build-out that we did.

         22                 Whether it be TeleBeam or any other

         23  beneficiary of this Authorizing Resolution, a

         24  15-year term would be critical to raising the type

         25  of capital necessary to build a communications plant
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          2  capable of competing with Verizon's incumbent pay

          3  phone and advertising network.

          4                 In addition, when we underwrote the

          5  debt financing in 1998, as did the company, we

          6  anticipated the opportunity for the company to place

          7  public communication devices, other than simply pay

          8  telephones, at the kiosk locations.

          9                 As public communication devices

         10  evolve, it is obviously critical to the company's

         11  business plan to place new generations of such

         12  equipment.

         13                 The capital investment in these

         14  technologies will require financing. The proposed

         15  amendment to the Authorizing Resolution will

         16  eliminate questions whether franchisees have the

         17  right to bring these new technologies to the public

         18  using their pay phone infrastructures, thereby

         19  eliminating certain credit risk and making debt

         20  financing more likely available to this industry.

         21                 While I have explained how the

         22  certainty of a 15-year term and the right to provide

         23  expanded technologies will be beneficial to lenders

         24  and borrowers, I want to conclude by emphasizing

         25  that the real beneficiaries of these amendments will
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          2  be the New York City public.

          3                 As these companies realize their

          4  business potential, it will become possible for

          5  every person in this City within the vicinity of a

          6  curbside pay phone kiosk, whether they live here,

          7  work here, or are just visiting, to have immediate

          8  access to the world of information; and that is what

          9  helps give New York City its reputation as one of

         10  the greatest cities in the world.

         11                 Thank you, and I'd be happy to answer

         12  any questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         14                 We've also been joined by Council

         15  Members Melinda Katz and Maria Baez.

         16                 Any questions from Committee members?

         17  We have one panel to go.

         18                 Melinda Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I ask the

         20  Sergeant-At-Arms to do something about the

         21  microphones. Thanks.

         22                 Out of curiosity, the City is saying

         23  that you don't need 15 years to amortize initial

         24  debt. Why do you believe the City would be against

         25  this legislation? Any one of you can take it.
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          2                 You're obviously at different ends of

          3  the spectrum, so I think it's a logical question and

          4  since you seem to have a lot of experience in it,

          5  I'd like to know what you think.

          6                 MR. COHEN: I hesitate to speculate on

          7  the City's motivation. I can only say that, you

          8  know, as Steve and I have said, we think it's

          9  beneficial to the City to have these new

         10  technologies put in place, and it's hard to justify

         11  it from a financial standpoint without the time

         12  needed to assure that the financing can be repaid

         13  and that the equity can make a profit on its

         14  investment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So your argument

         16  would be that as we expand what the kiosks are, and

         17  what the public pay phones are by the definition,

         18  you need more time to amortize, and your opinion is

         19  that since we haven't dealt with that in the past,

         20  that now that we're moving forward with this new

         21  definition, we need at minimum the 15 years; would

         22  that be accurate?

         23                 MR. COHEN: That's a great summary.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 That's it, Mr. Chair. Thanks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          4  gentlemen.

          5                 The next panel is Matthew Bauer and

          6  Jennifer Hensley.

          7                 MS. HENSLEY: Good morning. I am

          8  Jennifer Hensley, Assistant Vice President of

          9  Corporate and Government Affairs for the Downtown

         10  Alliance, Lower Manhattan's Business Improvement

         11  District.

         12                 We represent the thousands of

         13  businesses and hundreds of thousands of workers

         14  south of Chambers Street. Thank you for the

         15  opportunity to be here today.

         16                 Under the current authorizing

         17  resolution, the City's Department of Information

         18  Technology and Telecommunications has the authority

         19  to grant franchises for any duration up to 15 years.

         20                 This proposed amendment to Resolution

         21  Number 1043 would allow franchise agreements to be

         22  issued for a prescribed duration of 15 years.

         23                 The Downtown Alliance is concerned

         24  with the impact that 15-year franchises will have on

         25  Lower Manhattan's streetscape. Our narrow and
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          2  already overcrowded sidewalks are further cluttered

          3  by public pay telephones, many of which are in a

          4  constant state of disrepair. If franchise agreements

          5  are granted for 15 years, there will be even less

          6  opportunity for public review and recourse when

          7  franchises do not maintain their structures.

          8                 We believe that discretion regarding

          9  the duration of the franchise agreements for public

         10  pay telephones and other public communications

         11  services should remain under DoITT's jurisdiction.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 MR. BAUER: Good morning. My name is

         14  Matthew Bauer, and I'm the President of the Madison

         15  Avenue Business Improvement District, which

         16  represents property and business owners on Madison

         17  Avenue between East 60th and East 86th Streets in

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 I'm here to express our opposition to

         20  the amendment before you today that will extend to

         21  15 years the length of time by which public pay

         22  telephone franchises are awarded.

         23                 We have long been on record opposing

         24  the placement of additional public pay telephones

         25  within our district, they block pedestrian access,
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          2  hinder site lines necessary for public safety, and

          3  detract from the special ambiance of our

          4  streetscape, which makes Madison Avenue a world

          5  class shopping district.

          6                 We believe that extending the term of

          7  TPT franchises will serve as a disincentive for

          8  franchisees to maintain their telephones and

          9  telephone enclosures.

         10                 Given the ever-changing nature of New

         11  York City streetscape and street furniture,

         12  extending the length of TPT franchises will hinder

         13  the ability of the City to adapt to changes in

         14  sidewalk pedestrian conditions and sidewalk uses.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         17  from Committee members? Thank you, both.

         18                 Is there anybody else signed up to

         19  speak on this item? If not, I will close the public

         20  hearing on this item.

         21                 We will now move to the next item on

         22  the agenda, which is C 030294 ZMK, application

         23  submitted by Artopolis (phonetic) and CPC Resources

         24  for the amendment of the Zoning Map changing from an

         25  M1- 1 District to R- 6 District, property bounded by
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          1

          2  a line of 150 West of Franklin Avenue and other

          3  streets.

          4                 John West is here, Mr. West.  Just

          5  hang on one second while people leave the room.  Go

          6  ahead, Sir.  Push the button, it is the opposite of

          7  normal logic, when the light is on, it is actually

          8  off.

          9                 MR. WEST:  There I am.  My name is

         10  John West.  I am with the Community Preservation

         11  Corporation.  We, and Artopolis, are joint venturers

         12  in the redevelopment of a property, the site of

         13  which was just described.  I have a map, which shows

         14  its location. It is on the west side of Franklin

         15  Avenue, a few blocks south of Atlantic Avenue.  It

         16  is between Franklin Avenue and the Franklin Avenue

         17  Elevator Train.  The Franklin Avenue is largely

         18  residential with ground- floor retail.  This is as

         19  you can see in purple, the one industrial property

         20  along this stretch of the Avenue.

         21                 And the proposal is to change the

         22  zoning, which I am sure you cannot see on this map,

         23  but to change the zoning so that the M District

         24  boundary runs on the other side of our property.  We

         25  would convert the building to live/work space for
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          2  artists.  Our role in life is to develop affordable

          3  housing.  Our partner, Artopolis, role in life is to

          4  develop affordable live/work space for artists, so

          5  we are joint venturing on this.

          6                 I can go into the building in some

          7  detail, if you would like, but that is not directly

          8  germane to the rezoning.

          9                 The Community Board finds this a good

         10  idea.  They have made some suggestions, with which

         11  we agree.  We have also had several meetings with

         12  the Crow Hill Association, which is the block

         13  association for Franklin Avenue, and they have had

         14  some suggestions, which we think are good ones.

         15                 One which I might mention is that

         16  they are applying for public monies to improve the

         17  sidewalk environment. And we have suggested that we

         18  could work with, we have to do the sidewalks and

         19  plant trees anyway, so we are thinking maybe that

         20  would be the model for the street.

         21                 Any questions?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  For the record,

         23  the Community Board did vote in favor of the 25:3:2,

         24  I guess the 2 is 2 abstentions.  The Borough

         25  President has approved it.  The application lies
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          2  within Council Member Latitia James' District, and

          3  she is in support of the application, as well.

          4                 Any questions from Committee members?

          5  Council Member Vann.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: (Not using

          7  microphone.) Yes, who is the joint venture between?

          8                 MR. WEST:  The joint venture is

          9  between CPC Resources, which is a subsidiary of the

         10  Community Preservation Corporation and Artopolis,

         11  which is a subsidiary of the Elizabeth Foundation.

         12                 The Community Preservation

         13  Corporation, you may know as a lender for affordable

         14  housing in New York.  Artopolis is, their role in

         15  life is to provide work space and live/work space

         16  for artists.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: How big is it?

         18                 MR. WEST:  Approximately 80 units.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Eighty units?

         20                 MR. WEST:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: What is the

         22  square foot cost?

         23                 MR. WEST:  We are still working on

         24  that trying to get it down.  But the, if I remember

         25  correctly, the per square foot cost is about $85 a
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          2  square foot for the conversion.  And we are doing

          3  about 75 or 80 thousand square feet of space.  And I

          4  cannot do the arithmetic without my calculator

          5  anymore.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  How many

          7  contractors?

          8                 MR. WEST:  We are working with one

          9  contractor, but if we are unable to arrive at the

         10  price that we need, we will open it up to bids.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Are you

         12  considering minority and women business owned?

         13                 MR. WEST:  Yes, we are talking to the

         14  contractor about subcontracting various parts of the

         15  work to local people.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  But not a

         17  general contractor?

         18                 MR. WEST:  No, not at this point.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Who is your

         20  contractor?

         21                 MR. WEST:  I do not remember the

         22  company name at the moment.  Ira Duchion, I think, I

         23  am having a senior moment, I am sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Oh, okay, I

         25  have had a couple of those in my day.  Okay, can we
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          2  follow up with you and get that specific information

          3  in my office.

          4                 MR. WEST:  Absolutely, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  I am Council

          6  Member Al Vann.

          7                 MR. WEST:  I will be glad to do that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  All right,

          9  okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

         11  questions?  Thank you, Sir.  If there is no one else

         12  signed up to speak on this item, I will close the

         13  public hearing on this particular proposal.

         14                 And we will move onto the next item,

         15  which is Preconsidered C 040115 ZMQ, application

         16  submitted by Queens Community Board 13 and the Royal

         17  Ranch Civic Association for a downzoning.  Is City

         18  Planning outside, can we get them, will somebody get

         19  City Planning?

         20                 John, what I would like you to do, is

         21  do Royal Ranch first, and then we will go into, so

         22  far I do not think anybody is scheduled, the public,

         23  on either one, we will then go into Belrose as well.

         24    So as soon as you are ready let me know, because I

         25  am going to call on Council Member David Weprin for
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          2  a few introductory remarks.

          3                 Oh, there are, okay.  If there are,

          4  they have not signed in to speak, so if you will

          5  fill out a sign in slip.  In the meantime, I would

          6  like to call on Council Member David Weprin. This

          7  application lies within his district.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, thank you

         10  for giving me the opportunity to state my position

         11  on the Royal Ranch downzoning, as well as the

         12  Belrose downzoning, which I believe you will be

         13  taking up shortly.

         14                 The Preconsidered application, C

         15  0401115 ZMQ, is a compromise rezoning in the Royal

         16  Ranch Community in Eastern Queens in my district.

         17  Thirteen homes are currently zoned R- 32, these

         18  homes are out of conformity with the rest of the

         19  community. Originally, the Royal Ranch Association

         20  and Community Board 13 was seeking that these homes

         21  be downzoned to the more common R- 2 that the rest

         22  of the community enjoys.  However, through

         23  thoughtful negotiations between the homeowners, the

         24  association, the Community Board and City Planning,

         25  it was agreed that these homes would instead be
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          2  rezoned and designated as R- 3X.  This will allow

          3  owners of these plots to build up to a single two-

          4  family home, thus, curtailing the spread of larger

          5  multi- family dwellings that have sprung up.

          6                 Again, my deepest appreciation to all

          7  those involved who have truly turned this into a

          8  win/win situation.

          9                 May I comment on the Belrose?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, go ahead.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I am also

         12  here to voice support for L.U. 181, the downzoning

         13  of 22- block section of Belrose, which I believe is

         14  extremely important.  This area has been a

         15  tremendous growth of unsightly, multi- family

         16  dwellings out of character with the community.

         17                 This downzoning would change R- 32

         18  areas into R- 2 and R- 3A Zones, thus eliminating

         19  new, overdeveloped plots.  Community Board 13 and

         20  the local civic association in the area, strongly

         21  supports this ULURP application.

         22                 I also want to thank the Land Use

         23  Division, John Young, who is here, and City Planning

         24  for working so diligently in making this a reality.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  John, you are
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          2  on.

          3                 MR. YOUNG:  Good morning, Chairman

          4  Avella and fellow Council members, ladies and

          5  gentlemen.  I am John Young.  I am the Director of

          6  the Queens Office of City Planning.

          7                 And first to talk about the Royal

          8  Ranch application. This is an application jointly

          9  filed by the Royal Ranch Civic Association and

         10  Community Board 13, and we lent considerable

         11  assistance to them in discussing the zoning issues

         12  in the area.             The Royal Ranch Community

         13  is situated just south of North Shore Towers, and to

         14  the east of Glen Oaks Village.  And in that

         15  instance, those areas enjoy the benefit of an R- 32

         16  district, which typifies those multi- family

         17  developments.  But the portion of Royal Ranch that

         18  adjoins the development of 120 single- family homes

         19  was included within the R- 32, and that was creating

         20  the potential for out- of- character development, or

         21  semi- detached, two- family, multi- family homes,

         22  one of which, as was actually developed.

         23                 Through the Public Review process,

         24  the original application that was filed, as Council

         25  Member Weprin has identified, has been modified to
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          2  change the zoning for those 13 effected properties

          3  from R- 32 to R- 3X.  This zone does represent a

          4  compromise that will fulfill the intentions of the

          5  applicant to provide only detached housing in

          6  character with the rest of the Royal Ranch

          7  Development.  It would allow one- or two- family

          8  occupancy of those detached homes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions

         10  from Committee members?  John, I only have a couple

         11  of speakers for Royal Ranch, which I will take after

         12  you do your presentation.  To make things move ahead

         13  quicker, why don't you do the presentation on

         14  Belrose.

         15                 MR. YOUNG:  Certainly.  The

         16  Department of City Planning has proposed Zoning Map

         17  amendments for 22 blocks in the Belrose neighborhood

         18  in Eastern Queens.  The rezoning is one of the

         19  Department's lower- density rezoning initiatives in

         20  Queens, and it aims to maintain the prevailing one-

         21  and two- family, detached residences that typify

         22  development in the neighborhood, and ensure that new

         23  residential development fits the context and scale

         24  of the area's existing housing mix.

         25                 The proposed zoning amendments
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          2  respond to community concerns about out- of- context

          3  development allowed under existing zoning in the

          4  portion for Belrose situated between the Cross

          5  Island Parkway to the east, and the Creedmore Campus

          6  to the west.

          7                 Although, 97 percent of the present

          8  houses are detached or free- standing structures,

          9  the existing R- 32 Zoning, which dates to 1961,

         10  allows all types of housing, including adjoining or

         11  semi- detached buildings and attached row houses.

         12  Under current real estate market pressures, some

         13  detached, single family homes in the area have been

         14  demolished and replaced with semi- detached, two-

         15  family, or multi- family structures.

         16                 Under the rezoning proposal the R- 2

         17  district will be replaced with two zoning districts

         18  that more closely reflect the area's development

         19  patterns.  In the northern portion of the rezoning

         20  area an existing R- 2 Zone would be extended from

         21  east of the Cross Island Parkway, to encompass 14

         22  blocks between Union Turnpike and Hillside Avenue.

         23  In the southern portion, an existing R- 3A Zone

         24  would be extended north to encompass eight blocks

         25  between Hillside Avenue and 87th Avenue.
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          2                 The R- 2 Zoning District would limit

          3  new residential development to one- family, detached

          4  homes.  The R- 3A Zoning District would also permit

          5  only detached homes, but the homes can be one- or

          6  two- family structures, and the lot size

          7  requirements are comparatively smaller in the R- 3A

          8  district.  These zones were selected to reflect the

          9  detached one- and two- family housing character of

         10  the area, as well as the corresponding lot sizes.

         11                 The proposed rezoning was requested

         12  by local civic groups, including the Belrose

         13  Hillside Civic Association and the North Belrose

         14  Civic Association, as well as the Borough

         15  President's Zoning Task Force, and enjoys the

         16  support of local Council Member David Weprin and

         17  State Senator Frank Padavan.  In the Public Review

         18  process of Belrose rezoning proposals were

         19  unanimously supported by Community Board 13.  They

         20  received a favorable recommendation by Borough

         21  President Helen Marshall.  And on June 23rd, the

         22  City Planning Commission adopted the favorable

         23  resolution.

         24                 This action will be the third zoning

         25  map amendment to establish lower- density contextual
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          2  zoning districts in Belrose in 1989, when the first

          3  contextual zoning district in Queens was designated

          4  just south of the current rezoning area.  And in

          5  1991, the section east of the Cross Island Parkway

          6  was rezoned also to prevent out- of- context

          7  development.

          8                 Belrose remains an attractive

          9  residential neighborhood, and with the proposed

         10  zoning changes, its appeal will be ensured for years

         11  to come.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I would just

         13  like to echo the comments of my colleague, Council

         14  Member Weprin, that we certainly appreciate the work

         15  that you have done on these two applications. They

         16  are something that the communities have been asking

         17  for.

         18                 Any questions from Committee members?

         19    Thank you, John.

         20                 We have two people signed up to speak

         21  on the Royal Ranch application, Andrea, I am sorry I

         22  cannot read the last name, Marshak, and Carla

         23  Sickles.

         24                 MS. MARSHAK:  Good morning, Council

         25  members.  I represent Royal Ranch Association.  I am
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          2  their Corresponding Secretary, and I would like to

          3  thank Councilman Weprin, our Councilman, and Mr.

          4  Young, and Liz Ericgo from City Planning in Queens,

          5  for all of the work, and hard work, and incredible

          6  support they gave us during this two- year process

          7  to correct an error in our neighborhood which

          8  represented 11 lots out of 120.

          9                 Over the course of that two years, in

         10  a very close knit neighborhood, we did not want to

         11  cause any discomfort or unhappiness with our

         12  neighbors.  And therefore, we came to a very

         13  agreeable compromise, from R- 2 to the R- 3X, which

         14  had been the desire of some of our neighbors to have

         15  the right to build a two family, and therefore, we

         16  created that compromise which was given to us by

         17  City Planning.  And they were all supportive for it,

         18  and it past City Planning.  Our main concern right

         19  now is that we create this as law as quickly as

         20  possible, since as early as last week, efforts were

         21  made by developers to come in and start the process.

         22    I might add that we notified the Buildings

         23  Department that their efforts at the rat poisoning

         24  notification did not happen.  They were taking

         25  pictures and then removing it in an obvious effort
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          2  to subvert the spirit of the law, and simply satisfy

          3  a requirement of the City, as well as coming over to

          4  try starting to demolish one of the homes, without

          5  five- day notification, without a fence permit, none

          6  of that.

          7                 We have notified the Buildings

          8  Commissioner, Mr. Masard, of both of those

          9  instances, and we are hoping to review the plans to

         10  make sure that everything is done as agreed to.

         11                 So my goal here today is simply to

         12  thank everybody, and to ask that you please make

         13  this become law as quickly as possible so that we

         14  can move on to beautify our neighborhood instead of

         15  preserving it in this way.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before you leave

         18   - -

         19                 MS. MARSHAK:  Oh, any questions?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, I just

         21  wanted to add that the Committee will, obviously,

         22  vote on this today.  It goes to the Land Use

         23  Committee tomorrow.  It goes to the City Council on

         24  Wednesday.  The Mayor has five days to review it,

         25  and it will be done.

                                                            38

          1

          2                 MS. MARSHAK:  Okay, I see.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  So we are

          4  looking at next week, it will be official.

          5                 MS. MARSHAK:  Thank you, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 MS.  SICKLES:  Good morning.  I think

          8  Andrea said it all, and I would also like to thank

          9  everybody that was involved. We just have a

         10  beautiful, little neighborhood, and we just want to

         11  try to keep like it was, and everybody agrees.  We

         12  all know each other, and we all agree on this, and

         13  we just want to keep the beautiful, little place to

         14  live in, in Queens.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  If

         17  there is no one signed up to speak on Royal Ranch or

         18  the Belrose rezonings, I will close the public

         19  hearing on both items.

         20                 We are going to skip a couple of

         21  items on the agenda, and see if we can get through

         22  some of the more easier items.

         23                 Let us go to L.U. No. 136, C 040021

         24  ZMM, applications submitted by Lafayette Commercial

         25  Condominium for the amendment of the Zoning Map
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          2  changing from M- 1- 5B District to a C- 6 2

          3  District, property bounded by Cleveland Place,

          4  Broome Street and other streets.

          5                 We have Deidre Carson here to

          6  represent the applicant.

          7                 MS. CARSON:  Good morning, Chairman

          8  Avella and members of the Committee.  My name is

          9  Deidre Carson.  I am an attorney with Greenberg

         10  Traurig, and I represent the Lafayette Commercial

         11  Condo, which made the instant application.

         12                 As the Chair has described, the

         13  application would result in the rezoning of one-

         14  block area located on the eastern edge of the SoHo

         15  M- 1- 5B Zoning District, and the rezoning would be

         16  to C- 62 to permit development up to 6.02

         17  Residential FAR, which is slightly less than the

         18  existing FAR of the one building that occupies the

         19  area to be rezoned.

         20                 This particular building is already

         21  partially, residentially occupied.  But the building

         22  is not in the historic district so that the form of

         23  relief that many people seek to change the use of

         24  the buildings in SoHo is not available in this

         25  building, and that would be a Landmark Special
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          2  Permit.  Also, because of the people who are

          3  occupying the building wish to remain, they did not

          4  think it appropriate to pursue the other form of

          5  relief which might be available which is a Special

          6  Permit that is attainable when you have been unable

          7  to find conforming uses for the building.

          8                 There are artists and residents here

          9  of people in the design fields, and they wish to

         10  have the opportunity to legalize the residential

         11  use.  This change in zoning will permit that to

         12  happen.  It will also permit the ground floor of the

         13  building to be used for retail purposes, which is

         14  consistent with development in the area.

         15                 Virtually everything surrounding this

         16  building is now, permits some form of residential

         17  use to the east, and many of the buildings to the

         18  west of this property have already been converted.

         19  The Board of Standards and Appeals within the last

         20  year granted a zoning variance to permit

         21  construction of a new residential building on the

         22  one vacant lot that is west of this property.

         23  Therefore, we think this is an appropriate form of

         24  development.  The Community Board voted in favor of

         25  the action, the Borough President recommended in
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          2  favor, the City Planning Commission voted

          3  unanimously in favor, and we hope you will do so, as

          4  well.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions

          7  from Committee members?  I would mention that this

          8  project lies within Council Member Alan Gerson's

          9  district, and he is in full support of the

         10  application.

         11                 MS. CARSON:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  I do

         13  not see anybody signed up to speak on this item, if

         14  that is the case, I will close the public hearing on

         15  this item.

         16                 Okay, we now go to Land Use Item No.

         17  116, C 020666 ZMQ, an application submitted by

         18  Lawrence Avroch, is that how it is pronounced, for

         19  an amendment of the Zoning Map establishing within

         20  an existing R- 2 District, a C1- 2 District bounded

         21  by Francis Lewis Boulevard and other streets.  This

         22  application lies within Council Member David

         23  Weprin's District.

         24                 Council Member Weprin would like to

         25  make a statement prior to your presentation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.  I am here to oppose application L.U. 116

          4  for the property of 5837 Francis Lewis Boulevard.

          5  This amendment would establish a C1- 2 District

          6  within an existing R- 2 District to facilitate

          7  construction of an office building.

          8                 Community Board 11 held a public

          9  hearing on this application on March 1st, 2004, and

         10  recommended disapproval of the application by a

         11  20:10 vote.

         12                 While City Planning believes the

         13  modified amendment appropriate, I disagree.  It has

         14  been my experience that when an application is

         15  rejected by a Community Board and by effected civic

         16  associations, it is incumbent upon the applicant to

         17  reach out to those parties and consider their

         18  objections.  This applicant never reached out to

         19  Community Board 11 or the Auburndale Civic

         20  Association where the property lies.  Further, the

         21  applicant has made no effort to reach out to me or

         22  my office to sense community opinion.  I find this

         23  unusual and troubling, and I urge you to reject this

         24  application at this time.

         25                 If the applicant wants to submit his
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          2  modified plan to the Community Board, a plan they

          3  have yet to review, and if the Community Board were

          4  to amend their thoughts and vote, I would be happy

          5  to reconsider my disapproval.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. KORMAN:  Good morning, Chairman,

          8  members of the Council.  This is the first I hear of

          9  this opposition by Councilman Weprin, and I am

         10  really surprised, and I certainly, want to submit

         11  anything that you say as a compromise.

         12                 First of all, my name is Sol Korman,

         13  I am an engineer with the Agusta Group, and I

         14  represent Larry Avroch on this application.  Before

         15  I present the application, I would like to say that

         16  I did go to the Community Board.  Their only

         17  objections was that this property encroached 10 feet

         18  onto the adjacent property owner.  We had no problem

         19  with moving that property back the 10 feet.  It was

         20  the City Planning Commission that thought we should

         21  have 100- foot extension, an even amount, which is

         22  easily shown on their maps.  We went along with it,

         23  it did not matter to us either way.  Other than

         24  that, there was no real opposition that we could

         25  fathom that made any sense.
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          2                 In any event, I know there was a lot

          3  of problems with the adjacent medical building, of

          4  course, it has nothing to do with us.  They had

          5  problems, no parking, and things of that nature, but

          6  it had nothing to do with our application.  There

          7  was no real objections to the application, per se.

          8  This is the first I hear of your opposition, and I

          9  apologize for that, I would have certainly met with

         10  you had I known that you had problems with it, and

         11  we are certainly willing to compromise on this

         12  thing, if that is necessary.

         13                 As far as the application, itself,

         14  this is a 100 foot extension, again, recommended by

         15  City Planning to cover this vacant property.  I

         16  might add, Councilman, that this property has been

         17  vacant forever.  It has never been developed, it is

         18  in an R- 2 District.  I tried to put up this Land

         19  Use map showing this location surrounded by, as you

         20  well know, there is this huge shopping center on the

         21  other side of the Francis Lewis Boulevard, which is

         22  a huge 100- foot street.  The other street in

         23  question is another 100- foot street coming down.

         24  It is only a couple of hundred feet from the Long

         25  Island Expressway.  It was never, zoning of R- 2 is
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          2  only for a single family home, that will never

          3  happen, it never has happened, and probably never

          4  will, it has been vacant forever.

          5                 The applicant, Mr. Larry Avroch, who

          6  will speak also on this application, wishes to put

          7  on a two- story office, not even an office, a

          8  professional office building, he has no reason to

          9  put in any medical facilities, which by the way, as-

         10  of- right, right now.  This was one of the things

         11  they were afraid of more medical offices.  Medical

         12  offices could be built now, he has no intention of

         13  building medical offices.  He was to build

         14  professional offices. He owns the property, he has a

         15  real estate office on the property, which has been

         16  there for over 20 years.  It is a successful

         17  business, and will stay there.

         18                 Again, just to reiterate, there is

         19  this medical building completely adjacent to the

         20  property, which overwhelms, not only his property,

         21  but probably the property owners, and which is

         22  probably why they are so upset by any proposed

         23  development.  Across the street is the Walbaum's,

         24  and a huge shopping center, a 7- 11, this could

         25  never be developed for residential nor should it, it
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          2  is improper land use.

          3                 The City Planning Commission voted

          4  unanimously to approve this, they recognize that.

          5  The Borough President recognized that it is improper

          6  zoning for this particular piece of property, and

          7  she approved it as well.

          8                 Other than that, I really do not know

          9  what else I could add to this presentation.  I

         10  certainly will answer any questions you may have,

         11  Councilman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If I can, first

         13  of all, I think a clarification needs to be made.

         14  You made a statement that the Community Board was

         15  concerned about the overlay onto the residential,

         16  that was actually the Borough President was

         17  concerned about that.

         18                 MR. KORMAN:  Well I think she --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  That was brought

         20  up by the Borough President and you made that change

         21  in the application.

         22                 The Community Board voted 20 in favor

         23  to oppose, and 10, obviously, who opposed who were

         24  actually in favor.  Based upon the traffic

         25  congestion and noise and the impact on the
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          2  residential community.

          3                 MR. KORMAN:  Well as everybody that

          4  is familiar with that area knows that traffic is

          5  horrendous, which is the biggest reason that

          6  residential should not be built there.  There is

          7  heavy traffic, it is a shopping center, there are

          8  all sorts of, well, the LIE is only a couple of, you

          9  know, a few feet away.  So naturally, this

         10  development would certainly, and as a matter of

         11  fact, we even have parking, we are putting in 10

         12  parking spaces which is what zoning requires, and

         13  never anticipate to use those because it is the type

         14  of office which will not attract a lot of traffic.

         15                 It is professional offices that is

         16  the intention of Mr. Avroch.  And again, when we

         17  presented this at the Community meeting where it was

         18  voted down, we had asked specifically for the

         19  reasons why the Community Board was voting this

         20  down.  And we never really got a specific response,

         21  other than we do not want any development there.

         22                 In fact, somebody had said, and Mr.

         23  Avroch will testify to that, that no matter what

         24  comes before our Community Board, we are going to

         25  vote it down.  We do not want any development in
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          2  this Board.  This was the type of response, you

          3  know, we tried to reason, and we did not get any

          4  rational response as to why they were specifically

          5  opposed to this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well without

          7  sort of going into their reasoning, I mean, I can

          8  well imagine looking at the map how you are now

          9  extending the commercial area into the residential.

         10  And that is a fear in a lot of residential

         11  communities that today it will be this one piece of

         12  property, tomorrow it will be the next and the next.

         13    I mean there is a clear delineation between the

         14  commercial and the residential.

         15                 So in that respect, I assume that is

         16  the argument that they are making, and it is a

         17  legitimate argument.

         18                 MR. KORMAN:  Yes, I understand,

         19  generally speaking, any commercial load.  But we are

         20  talking about an overlay, which is already there, it

         21  is 150 feet deep.  And the extension only extends

         22  over Mr. Avroch's property, well other than that 10-

         23  foot thing. But it does not affect anybody else.

         24  Any other approach would have be covering property

         25  that isn't the ownership of the property owners
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          2  right now.  They have not intention of selling their

          3  property or doing anything like that.  They were

          4  against even this one.

          5                 Yes, it is true it extends an

          6  existing commercial overlay, but sometimes it makes

          7  sense.  In this case, it definitely makes sense,

          8  because this property, to repeat, has always been

          9  vacant.  Nobody wants to build a single family home

         10  on this particular piece of property.  If it were

         11  the case, it would have been built a hundred years

         12  ago, that is how long we traced the records.  And it

         13  probably will stay vacant without this application,

         14  it probably will stay vacant forever.

         15                 I would like Mr. Avroch to address

         16  some of these background issues, he could probably

         17  address them better than I can.

         18                 MR. AVROCH:  Approximately 21 years

         19  ago I bought the 20 feet that is on the northern

         20  most portion of this property, out of the 80 X 97.

         21  That is the part that is closest to the one- family

         22  home.  This is on Francis Boulevard, the property

         23  starts 150 feet off the Long Island Expressway, so

         24  it is a heavily traveled, commercial area.

         25                 When I bought the building, it was
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          2  occupied by a palm reader, who had no heat in the

          3  building, it was run down, it had mice.  I spent

          4  several hundred thousand dollars fixing it up over

          5  the last 21 years.  All of this time, the other 60

          6  feet that was between my real estate office and the

          7  medical building heading south has been vacant.

          8  Over those 21 years the owner who lived in Little

          9  Neck did nothing to keep up the property.  There had

         10  been weeds growing three, four feet high in the warm

         11  weather.  In the cold weather, when it snowed, no

         12  one ever shoveled the sidewalks, it was a hazard.

         13  After that every Christmas he illegally sold

         14  Christmas trees on the property.  After that for

         15  three or four years, before I bought the property,

         16  it was illegally rented to a landscaper who would

         17  park all of his trucks on the property.  It was an

         18  eyesore for the whole neighborhood.

         19                 When we went before the Community

         20  Board, before they took a vote, several of the

         21  members of the Community Board got up to speak.

         22  They all had predetermined opinions, which they

         23  expressed at the meeting, and some of them said that

         24  they would vote against any proposed zoning change

         25  or variance.  Another member of the Community Board,
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          2  his name is Frank Scallo, was quoted in the Bayside

          3  Times, as well as speaking at the meeting against

          4  the proposals saying we should not be swept along

          5  with this immoral tide.  This was the general

          6  feeling and atmosphere in that meeting. There were

          7  three of the neighbors who came to the meeting.  One

          8  of them was north of my property, he did not want

          9  the 10- foot extension of commercial on his

         10  property.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Can I sort of

         12  have quorum in the room?  If you need to have a

         13  conversation, can you please take it outside?  I

         14  noticed the same thing you did.  It is getting

         15  difficult to hear the witness speak.

         16                 Also, I am not sure if you introduced

         17  yourself for the record, would you please do that?

         18                 MR. AVROCH:  Oh, I am sorry.  My name

         19  is Lawrence Avroch.  I am the owner of the property.

         20                 The other two people from the

         21  neighborhood who spoke against it were the people

         22  east of my property, because originally the proposal

         23  was for 100 feet deep, and that encroach upon their

         24  backyard by three feet.  They did not want three

         25  feet of commercial property in their backyard.
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          2                 After a meeting with the Borough

          3  President's Assistant, it was determined that we

          4  would make the application smaller so it would only

          5  be 97 feet deep, it would not encroach on the

          6  neighbors in the back, and it would only be 80 feet

          7  wide, so it would not encroach on the neighbor to

          8  the north.

          9                 That was the opposition, other than

         10  the immoral tide and whatever other things were said

         11  at the meeting.  It was presented to the Borough

         12  President's Committee.  She recommended that the

         13  change be approved.  It was gone before the City

         14  Planning Commission, they voted unanimously to

         15  approve it.  We never heard any further opposition,

         16  or I certainly would have met with Mr. Weprin.  It

         17  comes as a complete surprise.

         18                 What I intend to put there is really

         19  very simple. I do not want food establishments, I do

         20  not want places where people can hang out at night,

         21  like the 7- 11 across the street from my office.

         22  All I want is professional offices for architects,

         23  for lawyers, accountants, that type of a clientele.

         24  Because I will still have my business right next to

         25  it where I have been for the last 21 years.
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          2                 If anyone has any questions, I would

          3  be happy to answer them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

          5  Weprin.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  There was

          7  also unanimous opposition by the Auburndale Civic

          8  Association, which represents that area.  Did you

          9  make any attempt to reach out to the Civic

         10  Association?

         11                 MR. AVROCH:  I was never even told

         12  about that opposition.  No one sent me a letter, no

         13  one called me, no one notified me in any way.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You know, I have

         15  to make a comment, I guess, and then I know my

         16  colleague will want to say something also.

         17                 It is incumbent upon the applicant,

         18  or who represents the applicant certainly to reach

         19  out to the people that are involved.  Certainly, you

         20  should have met with Council Member Weprin.  And it

         21  is interesting, because I remember specifically

         22  somebody from your office advising me about this

         23  application months ago when you went through like 10

         24  applications.  And I seem to remember specifically

         25  saying this is in Council Member Weprin's District,
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          2  what does he feel about this.  And I think I was

          3  told at the time, well, we have not talked to him

          4  yet.  And I remember saying, you should reach out to

          5  him and meet with him on the applications, because

          6  it is in his district.  Apparently, that was not

          7  done.

          8                 And you cannot now, turn around and

          9  say, well we did not know about this opposition.

         10  Well, you did not do the proper outreach in the

         11  first place.  I mean there is a procedure here.  I

         12  mean it does go before the City Council, it makes

         13  sense to me with the Council member, he is the

         14  elected, or she is the elected representative of

         15  that district.  And I mean I think you gotten

         16  yourself into a situation because you did not do

         17  your own homework.

         18                 This is not the first time we have

         19  said this to the Agusta Group.  That there seems to

         20  be a problem with communication, that has to change.

         21    You cannot do this.

         22                 I will let you respond.

         23                 MR. KORMAN:  Yes, I do apologize, not

         24  only to Council Member Weprin, but to the Chair, as

         25  well.  I really did not realize that there was a
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          2  problem, in all honesty.  I do not recall- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Even if there is

          4  no problem, the procedure, you should be contacting

          5  the Council member, because that person is the

          6  elected representative for the district as it

          7  relates to the City.  You should let him or her know

          8  what the application is.  Then you find out what the

          9  person's opinion.

         10                 It should not be a matter of only if

         11  the person opposes it that you are meeting with

         12  them.  How do you know if the person is in

         13  opposition, unless you actually talk to them?

         14                 MR. KORMAN:  I guess we were not

         15  really aware that it was Councilman Weprin's

         16  District.  I do apologize again to the Councilman,

         17  and I would be more than happy to meet with you at

         18  any time at your convenience to go through this, and

         19  see whatever we can do to make this application

         20  work.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         22  Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You really

         24  echoed, you know, Councilman Avella is Chair of this

         25  Committee.  I am Chair of the Land Use Committee,
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          2  and really one of the greatest things we always do

          3  when people come to approach us, and I have not, by

          4  the way, been approached, but my most first

          5  question, no doubt, would have been, have you

          6  contacted Council Member Weprin?  And with all due

          7  respect to anyone who comes before us, it is not

          8  incumbent upon the Council member to reach out.  It

          9  is incumbent upon the developer and whoever it is

         10  that represents them to reach out to the Council

         11  member, the same way and with the same respect that

         12  they show City Planning, and that they show

         13  everybody else.

         14                 I will just tell you that it is my

         15  understanding that Auburndale Civic has made their

         16  views known to you.  And if not, I would say that it

         17  is also incumbent upon folks to understand that the

         18  Civics are an important part of our community, as

         19  well.

         20                 So, you know, I just wanted to show a

         21  little, show support for the Councilman here, and

         22  just let everyone in this room know that when they

         23  come before us, one of the first things we are going

         24  ask is, have you approached the Council member and

         25  tried to work it out?  So I really just wanted to
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          2  echo what the Chair said.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. KORMAN:  Well you can be sure

          5  that from this point on we definitely will do.  It

          6  is a procedure that I really was not aware of, in

          7  all honesty.  But I certainly will adhere to it with

          8  no questions asked.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

         10  comments, questions, from Committee members.

         11                 MR. AVROCH:  Chairman Avella.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure.

         13                 MR. AVROCH:  I hope I am not

         14  interrupting.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, no, go

         16  ahead.

         17                 MR. AVROCH:  I had brought, I'm

         18  sorry, I had brought photographs of the actual

         19  property in question, where my building is, the

         20  vacant land, the medical building, and everything

         21  that is across the street.  Because sometimes

         22  photographs can convey much better than words or

         23  MAPS or anything like that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If you would

         25  like, you can leave them with the Committee, and we
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          2  will take a look at them. Thank you, gentlemen.

          3                 Is there anybody signed up to speak

          4  on this item? If not, I will close the public

          5  hearing on this matter, and we will move on with the

          6  rest of the agenda.

          7                 MR. KORMAN:  Thank you, Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Dan Golub,

          9  representing Assembly Member Richard Gottfried, who

         10  is signed up for the wrong item.  Okay, because he

         11  signed for the Bellerose.  We figured that was

         12  wrong.

         13                 Okay, we are going to go on to Land

         14  Use Items 040331 through 040344, which are all

         15  related, which is in Manhattan Community Board 5,

         16  what is commonly referred to as the "Ladies Mile

         17  Rezoning." Can we find out who is here from City

         18  Planning to make this presentation?

         19                 EDITH: (Not identified for the

         20  record.) I am here with my colleague, Ivan

         21  Shonefelt, and a representative of the private

         22  co-applicant, Marcie Kesner, and we are here to

         23  present and answer any questions you may have on the

         24  Ladies Mile Rezoning.

         25                 Ivan will go through Boards, but
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          2  before he does, I want to just say a few things

          3  about this proposal.

          4                 First, we are very proud of this

          5  rezoning.  It is a relatively small, geographic

          6  area, only about five and a half blocks in

          7  Manhattan, but accomplishes many things.

          8                 First, it updates zoning to more

          9  accurately reflect the reality of the Ladies Mile

         10  area, which as you know is a very vibrant, mix- used

         11  area, full of commercial, residential, retail, and

         12  some, actually, very little light manufacturing use.

         13    Which would still be allowed to remain in the area

         14  after the rezoning.

         15                 We will see development on vacant

         16  parking lots in the area.  These vacant lots in the

         17  historic district will be replaced, we hope, with

         18  always needed housing units in the City.

         19                 We also have commitments from the

         20  owners of these lots to include parking on these

         21  sites, so that parking will not be lost in the area.

         22                 This project is also very sensitive

         23  to the historic context.  As part of this proposal

         24  we have introduced, we have included a text

         25  amendment that we have worked on with the Landmarks
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          2  Preservation Commission that would, that increases

          3  the Landmark Preservation Commission ability or

          4  flexibility in reviewing new buildings in the area.

          5  It would allow them to raise the street wall height

          6  of new buildings in the area to a height that is

          7  more appropriate for that specific site.

          8                 Also, or finally, we believe this

          9  project is very responsive to concern that we heard

         10  during the public review process.  We had heard

         11  testimony that, we have heard some concerns about

         12  the possibility of additional night clubs in the

         13  area.  As you know the area is presently zoned

         14  manufacturing, and in this particular area any new

         15  night clubs for 200 persons or more is required to

         16  receive a BSA Special Permit.

         17                 Under the new district designation

         18  this Special Permit would not be required.  However,

         19  the City Planning Commission at the time of the vote

         20  did reintroduce this Special Permit so that any new

         21  night clubs of 200 persons or more will still be

         22  required to get this, to go through a special permit

         23  review first.

         24                 So having said that, I would like to

         25  turn the microphone to my colleague, Ivan, who is
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          2  the Project Manager for this rezoning.  And if you

          3  have any questions, please let us know.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MR. SHONEFELT:  Good morning, Council

          6  members.  The rezoning area is a five and a half

          7  block area shown up here in red, in the Flatiron

          8  District and it covers the mid- blocks between Fifth

          9  and Sixth Avenue, from the center line between 16th

         10  and 17th Street to the south, up to 22nd Street to

         11  the north.  Almost all of the area is within the

         12  Ladies Mile Historic District, which is shown here

         13  in the blue dotted line.

         14                 The area is currently zoned M1- 6M,

         15  which is a 10FAR mix- used zone that allows for a

         16  mix of manufacturing and commercial uses.

         17  Residential conversions are allowed provided that a

         18  portion of the building that is being converted, or

         19  a comparable building in the area, is preserved for

         20  either commercial or manufacturing use.  New

         21  residential construction is not allowed.

         22                 The proposed zoning is C- 64- A,

         23  which is also a 10FAR District and it allows for

         24  similar mix of uses, but would allow for as- of-

         25  right residential conversions, and as- of- right
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          2  residential construction.  Existing manufacturers in

          3  the area would be allowed to remain as conforming

          4  use.

          5                 As Edith mentioned before, this

          6  rezoning is really important for three reasons:

          7                 It would update the zoning to reflect

          8  the mix- use character of the area.

          9                 It would allow for residential

         10  development on parking lots in the area, lots that

         11  have remained vacant for decades because there has

         12  not been a demand for new commercial or

         13  manufacturing space, which is what the current

         14  zoning allows.

         15                 And it would ensure that any new

         16  development is in character with the surrounding

         17  area in terms of built context.

         18                 These are some photos of the area, to

         19  give you an idea of the existing built context.  The

         20  area is characterized by high street wall loft

         21  buildings.  Almost all the buildings rise to their

         22  full height at the street wall.  And the area is

         23  also characterized by a number of parking lots in

         24  the area.

         25                 This rezoning is really timely
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          2  because there has been a lot of private sector

          3  interests in developing those parking lots with

          4  residential buildings, and we are actually working

          5  with, this rezoning was submitted with a private co-

          6  applicant that represents the owners of two of those

          7  parking lot sites.

          8                 In terms of Land Use, the area is

          9  primarily a commercial and retail area, with a

         10  significant residential presence.  There are about

         11  350 residential units in just these five and a half

         12  blocks.  On this map the red indicates the

         13  commercial buildings, the yellow located throughout

         14  are the residential buildings, the orange are the

         15  mix- use commercial and residential buildings.  The

         16  purple of those buildings that have, at least, some

         17  remaining manufacturers.  That only about 3 percent

         18  of the jobs in the area today are in the

         19  manufacturing sector.  And in gray are the parking

         20  lot sites.  Outlined in black are the sites that we

         21  would anticipate to be developed, if this rezoning

         22  was approved. And together those would produce about

         23  900 new residential units.

         24                 This is a model of what could

         25  potentially be built under the existing zoning and
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          2  under the proposed zoning.  The current M1- 6M

          3  Zoning does not require street wall, and it allows a

          4  building to set back from the street without a

          5  height limit.  So potentially a building could be

          6  built a tower of 435 feet.  This is a historic

          7  district, so this would not likely be approved by

          8  Landmarks, but this is what the zoning allows today.

          9                 Under the proposed zoning the C- 64-

         10  A envelope would require a contextual envelope

         11  requiring the building to be built at the street

         12  wall and limiting overall height limits.

         13                 These models show how C- 64- A works.

         14    There is an overall building height cap of 185

         15  feet, or about 18 stories.  And there is a mandatory

         16  street wall requirement with a minimum street wall

         17  of 60 feet, and a maximum street wall of 125 feet.

         18                 As part of this rezoning we are

         19  proposing a text change that would allow the maximum

         20  height of the street wall to be raised up to 150

         21  feet to match an adjacent building.  And we

         22  developed this text change in consultation with the

         23  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         24                 Concurrent with this rezoning and

         25  text change, the private co- applicant has also
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          2  submitted two special permit applications for

          3  parking garages on two sites.  One of the sites at

          4  that location would replace a 180- space parking

          5  lot, with a 363 space, underground parking garage.

          6                 The other site at this location would

          7  replace a 100 space parking lot, aggregate parking

          8  lot with a 104- space below grade parking garage.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  This proposal

         10  lies within Council Member Christine Quinn's

         11  District, Council member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         13  first just want to thank City Planning and the

         14  applicants for working closely with my office and

         15  the other elected officials on making some changes

         16  to the proposal.  I mean you went through them.

         17  There is a couple of things I want to add, have you

         18  confirm for the record, but I want to thank you very

         19  much for recognizing the level of concern which

         20  existed from the elected officials and others about

         21  the original changes that existed as it related to

         22  making night life as- of right.  And we are very

         23  grateful that you went back in and made the change

         24  to make it so that a Special Permit is still

         25  required.  We want to thank you very, very much for
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          2  that.

          3                 I also just want to state, and I

          4  would like you to confirm, that also as part of the

          5  discussions around this action the Administration

          6  has committed through the Criminal Justice

          7  Coordinator's Office to convene a Task Force.  And

          8  the purpose of this Task Force is not to determine

          9  whether or not there are problems in the

         10  neighborhood relating to the co- existence of night

         11  life and residents, but to come up with solutions to

         12  how to deal with those problems.  And that the

         13  Agency Task Force is going to include the Police

         14  Department, the Criminal Justice Coordinator, the

         15  Department of Transportation, Department of

         16  Buildings, the Environmental Control Board,

         17  Department of Sanitation, Department of Consumer

         18  Affairs, did I forget anybody?  You were not

         19  listening, probably not, and anybody else we

         20  mentioned before.  And obviously, the Community

         21  Board, the elected officials, and the

         22  representatives.  And we are very, I am very

         23  optimistic about the ability of this Task Force,

         24  because already, you know, on type vice I think we

         25  made changes as it relates to parking regs and
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          2  things like that that have been helpful, and I think

          3  having a more focused look by so many agencies at

          4  the table convened by the Criminal Justice

          5  Coordinator's Office will be very helpful in making

          6  sure that whatever problems exist are dealt with.

          7  And that there are not anymore that would result as

          8  bringing more residents into this area.

          9                 So I am correct that this Task Force

         10  will be happening.

         11                 EDITH:  Yes, I would like to, I am

         12  happy to confirm that we will, indeed, be working

         13  with the Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator

         14  to bring together multiple agencies to develop

         15  strategies to deal with this, the night life

         16  concerns that you have mentioned, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         18  And you know there are some folks in the

         19  neighborhood, I think, would have preferred that we

         20  work through this process to totally ban night life

         21  altogether in the area.  You know, I feel like the

         22  keeping the Special Permit in place with the Task

         23  Force will lead to the level of attention that is

         24  necessary to allow more appropriate co existence.

         25                 There has also been concern and a lot

                                                            68

          1

          2  of discussion in the neighborhood about the question

          3  of whether this rezoning and this action will allow

          4  or facilitate higher, taller, tower like buildings

          5  in the area.  And if you could comment on that a

          6  little, that would be helpful.

          7                 EDITH:  Sure, I am happy to.  Well,

          8  first of all, I think that the 180- foot tower was

          9  perhaps a misnormer, because towers, in fact, would

         10  not be allowed here at all.  We are requiring a

         11  street wall, which typically the maximum would be

         12  125 feet, but through this text amendment the street

         13  wall could be raised by LPC to 150 feet so that it

         14  would more appropriately match, you know, the area

         15  or neighboring buildings.  LPC has review of each

         16  new development project that comes into the area.

         17  And they would deem what is appropriate.

         18                 If in the case a proposal was, a

         19  development was proposed with a piece on top of the

         20  base building that goes into 185 feet, LPC would

         21  have to review the entity of the building, and they

         22  would make the determination whether that bulk and

         23  that form is appropriate.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And so,- -  go

         25  ahead.
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          2                 MR. SHONEFELT:  And I just wanted to

          3  add that LPC has reviewed applications for three

          4  different sites over the years. Recently for one of

          5  the parking lot sites, or private applicant, has

          6  submitted an application for a certificate of

          7  appropriateness for one of the sites.  And

          8  previously for BSA Special Permit in the area, and

          9  prior to that a Special Permit through City

         10  Planning. And each of those three applications, LPC

         11  approved a building form where the building was

         12  built at the street wall, and that the setback

         13  portion would not be visible from the street.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So in this

         15  action, I just want to reiterate, there is a change

         16  that will actually help Landmarks in a way to

         17  preserve the neighborhood context of the area.

         18  Could you explain or elaborate on that a little bit?

         19                 MR. SHONEFELT:  Well, yes, by

         20  allowing for the street wall to be raised up to 150

         21  feet, we allowed Landmarks more flexibility in

         22  coming up with an envelope that is really

         23  appropriate for the area because many of the

         24  buildings in the area rise other 150 feet at the

         25  street wall.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But that is

          3  something that we are actually adding that level of

          4  flexibility.  That is not just an extension of what

          5  presently exists?

          6                 MR. SHONEFELT:  No, what presently

          7  exists a building must setback at 85 feet.  So there

          8  is under the current zoning you are not allowed to

          9  have a high street wall building.  So this zoning

         10  would allow that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And is it your

         12  understanding that prior to the vote and the Land

         13  Use Committee tomorrow, the Landmarks Preservation

         14  Commission is going to be sending a letter to myself

         15  and to the Chairs just reiterating that the

         16  representation by the City Planning Commission as it

         17  relates to greater flexibility of street walls, and

         18  therefore, you know the tower issue not being one of

         19  concern that we will be receiving that letter from

         20  them to be part of the record.

         21                 EDITH:  Yes, indeed, they will be

         22  sending you that letter by tomorrow.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Great, thank

         24  you all very much for your presentation and for

         25  working with us on this issue and making the
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          2  changes.  And I guess you guys will probably be

          3  spared most of the Task Force meetings, but I look

          4  forward to seeing the representatives of City

          5  agencies at the Task Force.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

          8  questions from my colleagues?  Thank you.

          9                 We have a number of people signed up

         10  to speak on this item.  First, I would like to call

         11  Dan Golub from Assemblyman Richard Gottfried's

         12  Office.

         13                 By the way, Paul Silver had signed

         14  up, I assume, that Marcie, since you did not speak,

         15  he was not interested in speaking either.  Marcie,

         16  since you did not speak, Paul was not interested in

         17  speaking either?  Okay, okay, I just want to make

         18  sure.

         19                 MR. GOLUB:  Thank you, Council

         20  members, and thank you for ensuring that I was

         21  speaking on the right Land Use item today.

         22                 My name is Dan Golub.  I represent

         23  Assembly Member Richard Gottfried, who represents

         24  the 75th Assembly District in Manhattan, which

         25  includes the Flatiron/Ladies Mile neighborhoods. The
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          2  Assembly member regrets that he is unable to be here

          3  in person, but thanks the Chairman for the

          4  opportunity to testify.

          5                 The following is his statement:

          6                  "I appreciate the City Planning's

          7  work on this proposal, and I am generally supportive

          8  of the effort to rezone this area and to permit new

          9  housing development.  However, I am concerned and

         10  disappointed that this rezoning does not include

         11  strong provisions to require the construction of

         12  housing that is affordable to low- to moderate-

         13  income New Yorkers.  While the City's current

         14  inclusionary zoning bonus will be available in this

         15  area, this is an optional mechanism that will create

         16  few, if any, new units of affordable housing.

         17                 It appears that this serious

         18  deficiency cannot now be addressed as an in- scope

         19  amendment to the current plan, that is because the

         20  Administration does not plan for or even consider

         21  its alternatives in its EIS, affordable housing with

         22  every rezoning it contemplates, and this needs to

         23  change.

         24                 I understand that the Environmental

         25  Assessment Study for the rezoning only studied
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          2  traffic patterns on week days.  But traffic problems

          3  in this area are particularly bad on weekend nights

          4  and early mornings when night clubs are busiest.

          5  The impact of new residential development must be

          6  measured against traffic patterns at their worst.

          7                 I understand that Council Member

          8  Quinn has proposed that an all out Agency Task Force

          9  study traffic patterns and other quality- of- life

         10  issues in the area, and propose potential mitigation

         11  efforts, and that the Administration has agreed to

         12  create such an entity.  I applaud that achievement.

         13  I look forward to working with the community on this

         14  effort, and I encourage City agencies to take its

         15  findings into account.

         16                 This neighborhood is particularly

         17  inundated with bars and clubs.  Much of the rezoned

         18  area is within the area in which Community Board 5

         19  has declared a moratorium on new liquor licenses.

         20  In response to the community's concerns, the

         21  Commission has amended the proposed rezoning so that

         22  nightclubs with a capacity of more than 200 persons

         23  will be subject to special permit, rather than be

         24  as- of- right.  I also understand that Council

         25  Member Quinn has negotiated an understanding with
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          2  the private applicant to ensure that their property

          3  would not be used as a club.  These are significant

          4  steps forward for the community.  I will continue to

          5  work with community leaders to counter the

          6  unavoidable impact of an excessive concentration of

          7  night life on residential quality of life, which is

          8  particularly problematic in the Ladies Mile/Flatiron

          9  community.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  testify."

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  I am

         13  going to call up the next bunch of speakers, and I

         14  guess, in two panels, Sharon Riley, Ashwin Verma,

         15  Michelle Golden.  Okay, Layla Law Gisiko, and since

         16  we have four chairs there, I can call up Susan

         17  Finley, as well.

         18                 Just introduce yourself for the

         19  record, and just start talking.

         20                 MS. GOLDEN:  Okay, my name is

         21  Michelle Golden.  I am Vice- President of the

         22  Flatiron Alliance.  We had very short notice on

         23  Friday, we found out that this vote is taking place

         24  this week. We are duly concerned, and very, very

         25  unhappy.
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          2                 We have the BSA Special Permit back,

          3  and we are supposed to be happy about that, but that

          4  is not a compromise, that is cohesion.  Basically,

          5  we need more than that, and you are giving us too

          6  little, too late.  We are very, very unhappy with

          7  this situation.  We do not think that you have

          8  listened to the community.

          9                 We are wondering who this rezoning

         10  benefits.  It does not benefit the community.  We

         11  are over 500 residents, and this is where we started

         12  Flatiron Alliance.  We have expanded out from that.

         13  But we have over 500 residents and many businesses

         14  that are very unhappy about this rezoning.  It gives

         15  nothing to the community.  It is about five parking

         16  lot owners.  And for five parking lot owners, you

         17  are going to turn our lives upside down. And if you

         18  think that is taking care of these constituents of

         19  New York City, you are misguided.

         20                 I am just absolutely flabbergasted

         21  and disheartened over this process.  This ULURP does

         22  not work, it is a sham.  It is designed to say that

         23  you consulted the community, you gave us back

         24  something you took away, but you are not listening

         25  to our real problems.  You have a tremendous
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          2  opportunity to deal with mix- use, not in more

          3  convening of large groups to talk about a Task

          4  Force. You have the opportunity, the buck stops

          5  here.  For God's sake, please, rezone appropriately

          6  for the community, not for five parking lot owners.

          7                 One of the six parking lot owners,

          8  already within the context of the current zoning has

          9  gone for a special permit. The five others want the

         10  easy way out at our expense.  I ask you not to do

         11  this.  Either change the zoning, make it meaningful,

         12  table this vote today, find out more about what you

         13  are talking about, and please, include the community

         14  and listen to us for a change.

         15                 We have waited 20 years for this

         16  rezoning, and it is nothing for us, nothing to us.

         17  We are ashamed of the government process at this

         18  point, of this democratic process.  We want use

         19  group 6A, 6E, and 12 removed from this zoned area.

         20  Grandfather the 34 liquor licenses that make our

         21  life hell now, and over 134 in the surrounding

         22  blocks, they are grandfathered.  I have no problem

         23  with that.  We can hardly get our arms around those,

         24  and now you want to say, good.  The BSA Special

         25  Permit is not working, one place went for it, Splash
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          2  Bar.  The rest of the places do not bother, Cheetah

          3  does not bother.  Lime Light is on the corner, so

          4  they do not have to.

          5                 You are not doing us any good by

          6  giving us this. You are telling us that Landmarks

          7  will not give us towers.  Well most of our buildings

          8  are 10 to 12 stories.  And if you have 150 foot

          9  street wall that is great.  But if you go ahead and

         10  put 35 foot towers set back on that, you are just

         11  blocking the light and air and creating canyons of

         12  noise.

         13                 I refer you to July 12th Newsweek

         14  article, New York Magazine, I'm sorry.  We have

         15  worked with the Mayor, we have begged for noise law.

         16  We are excited about his noise law.  Yes, I know

         17  people are poking holes and making fun of it.  But

         18  however, this is true, look at the canyon effect, it

         19  is on your desk now.  It talks about the canyon

         20  effect.  If you go ahead and seal up all those

         21  street walls and heighten those street walls to 150,

         22  you are exacerbating the situation we already have.

         23                 We are going deaf in New York, it is

         24  not just us. But our little side streets are narrow.

         25  Our problem is noise, our problem is violence,
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          2  drugs.  You have done nothing in this rezoning to

          3  help us.  We are not interested in banning night

          4  life, we have 34 establishments mid- block now.

          5  That is well beyond the 500- foot rule.  You have to

          6  counteract the SLA.  You are where the buck stops,

          7  you are our representatives, you are the people who

          8  can save us.  I am absolutely horrified at what is

          9  being coerced, that we are being coerced, and this

         10  is rammed down our throats.

         11                 You are adding 2,000 residents, tell

         12  them, these residents that come to this building,

         13  take a look at us at nights and weekends, and take a

         14  look at them paying $9,000 for a loft. They do want

         15  to live with us?  We hardly want to live with us. I

         16  am very disappointed. You had an ideal opportunity

         17  to take care of mixed use for the entire City of New

         18  York, the greatest city in the world.

         19                 We love our city, we love our Ladies

         20  Mile. Landmarks will not help us, DCP will not help

         21  us, BSA Special Permits will not help us.  You are

         22  the guys and the women who can help us.  And I beg

         23  you, table this vote, find out more about it, you

         24  are still in the ULURP process time limit, and

         25  figure out what you can do to change it.  Do not
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          2  just give us little crumbs anymore, we are 20 years

          3  with crumbs.  We pay enormous taxes, we are

          4  absolutely horrified at what is going on.

          5                 This benefits a few at the sake of

          6  the many.  And for God's sake, money does not talk,

          7  it swears.  So drop the neutron bomb, kill the

          8  people, and leave the buildings standing. Do you

          9  care more about buildings than you care about

         10  people?

         11                 MS. LAW GISIKO:  Good morning.  My

         12  name is Layla Law Gisiko.  I live at 9 West 20th

         13  Street in the area proposed for the rezoning.  I am

         14  a journalist, a reporter, a mother of two, raising

         15  my family in this wonderful neighborhood.

         16                 As you know, City Planning Department

         17  is proposing to rezone part of the Ladies Mile

         18  District, joining with a private partner.  This

         19  private partner is Richard Chapman Associates.  He

         20  owns two parking lots on 21st Street.  An

         21  Environmental Study performed for City Planning and

         22  Richard Chapman Associates was released last spring.

         23    It is a large document that assesses the impact of

         24  the rezoning on our environment, traffic, air

         25  quality, noise, et cetera.
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          2                 What was not made clear is that this

          3  study was paid for by Richard Chapman Associates.

          4  The property developer who stands to make huge

          5  profits from the proposed rezoning.  It is an

          6  unequivocal conflict of interest.  It is as if the

          7  Surgeon General asked the Tobacco companies to

          8  prepare a study on the health impact of smoking

          9  cigarettes.

         10                 When I spoke with the project leader

         11  at City Planning Department, he explained the reason

         12  behind this partnership.  City Planning decided to

         13  work with a private partner because this private

         14  partner was offering to pay for the study. The lead

         15  person insisted that this is "very expensive and

         16  time consuming study costing tens of thousands of

         17  dollars."  He said, "for us it was a way to advance

         18  our agenda without tapping into our resources.  We

         19  consider it a win/win situation, the promoter is

         20  happy, and City Planning is happy."  But it is a

         21  very big lose/lose situation for the community that

         22  will have to deal with more nightclubs, more noise,

         23  more construction over a period of 10 years, more

         24  traffic, and the perspective living in a

         25  construction site for the next 10 years.
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          2                 Amanda Burden, the Chair of City

          3  Planning Commission, admitted that the promoter paid

          4  for the study and justified it by saying it is

          5  always the way rezoning is done.  I find it shocking

          6  and terrifying when the head of an Administration

          7  dismisses charges of conflict of interest with a

          8  shoulder shrug and a mere, it is business as usual.

          9                 As this current meeting is held in

         10  summer, the turnover from the community might be

         11  minimal, and we really regret that.  But I have

         12  received several emails from a lot of neighbors who

         13  could not attend, but share the same views as me.  I

         14  want to assure you that we, the neighbors, the

         15  community, are massively against this rezoning.  And

         16  I want to make it clear, we are not against rezoning

         17  per se, but this particular one, we are against it.

         18                 We do not want 185 feet tall towers

         19  on our blocks. We do not want to lose our air, we do

         20  not want to live in canyon streets where noise

         21  bounces off the walls.  When the bulldozers go off

         22  at 7:00 a.m. Every morning, our quality of life

         23  during the day will now mirror the cacophony of

         24  noise that goes on during the night due to the

         25  unregulated proliferation of nightclubs.  The
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          2  current plan does not give anything back to the

          3  community, no public library, no park, no affordable

          4  housing whatsoever, no community center, no cultural

          5  center, only more residents, more noise, more night

          6  clubs.  Despite this BSA Special Permit being

          7  reinstated, we know it does not work.

          8                 And if you want to know what

          9  residents think, please, do a survey before making

         10  any decision.  The rezoning is being forced fed to

         11  the community.  Please turn down this rezoning, vote

         12  against it.  Do not let our beloved historical

         13  neighborhood destroyed by the greed of promoters.

         14                 Thank you for allowing me the time to

         15  voice my concerns.

         16                 MR. VERMA:  Hello, Albert, Tony,

         17  Maria, Christine, thank you for having me here.  And

         18  Ma'am, your name is, I am sorry, staff, okay.  My

         19  name is Ashwin Verma.  I am a resident at 40 West

         20  22, thank you for having me here.

         21                 I just want to say that I will speak,

         22  I just want to make sure that if you want to

         23  interrupt me and ask me questions, I have no issues

         24  with that at all.  To me, it shows that you are

         25  engaged, and I would appreciate that.
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          2                 Thank you for having me here.  Myself

          3  and my family moved into the neighborhood four years

          4  ago.  We thought it would be a good place to raise

          5  families, and we believed the Ladies Mile was a

          6  Landmark Historic District, a place that would

          7  maintain its charm, and protect the quality of life

          8  for ourselves and our families.

          9                 Unfortunately, I quickly realized

         10  that it would become a dumping ground for failed

         11  urban planning.  Gigantic towers are springing up

         12  all around us.  And new incarnations of clubs with

         13  long lines that stretch half- way down the block and

         14  somehow park themselves at the entrance of my

         15  building.  I guess the City then shifts their civic

         16  responsibility to myself to ask them not to urinate

         17  on my front door, play blaring music outside my

         18  building, or drop a blanketing confetti of flyers

         19  all over our sidewalks.

         20                 Somehow when you get to SoHo or the

         21  Village or other historic areas, the establishments

         22  there warn us, please be quiet, there are people

         23  living here at night.  Or, sorry, gardens close at

         24  10, there are people living here, please be

         25  considerate and mindful.  Somehow on our block, and
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          2  on our blocks in the Ladies Mile, that never

          3  happens.  I never seem to hear those words in our

          4  beautiful, Ladies Mile Historic District.

          5                 Furthermore, besides the clubs and

          6  bars that you make our nights into day, our streets

          7  are narrow.  We have a lot of noise pollution, not

          8  too much air, and not too much ventilation in our

          9  neighborhoods.  But thank God the people who we

         10  depend on to protect us realize that and have stated

         11  so in the zoning amendment. I quote, "The purpose of

         12  this rezoning amendment is to strengthen and

         13  preserve the area's built character.  The existing

         14  zoning permits building types that do not reflect

         15  the prevailing character of the surrounding area.

         16  The lack of effective zoning controls governing

         17  height and setback encourages tower development

         18  without height limitations that contrast sharply

         19  with the existing built character of the

         20  neighborhood.  The proposed zoning would ensure that

         21  any new development will be in character with the

         22  built context of the surrounding historic district."

         23                 You read down a couple of lines and

         24  then you hear what City Planning say, their next

         25  statement is that they want to clarify the zoning
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          2  test and raise the street wall height to 150 feet.

          3  So, three sentences up we talk about height

          4  limitations, about helping us, about keeping in

          5  character with this historic zoning area, which has

          6  four- story buildings, six- story buildings, eight,

          7  twelve, and then on the other line we say that we

          8  want to raise the street wall heights to 150 feet.

          9  And I guess what scares me is that it is this kind

         10  of oh welling and double speak that, you know,

         11  somehow you put into an official thing, you put it

         12  down.  And I totally agree with that, if you say

         13  something enough times, it can be contradictory, it

         14  can be conflicting, but people believe it. And I

         15  just want to sort of call attention to it, that is,

         16  as far as I am concerned it is wrong and it is BS.

         17                 We can take the zoning that we have

         18  right now, the building that we have right now, and

         19  say like, you know what the tallest one is 12

         20  stories, we are going to put in 12- stories, we are

         21  going to add 13- stories, make everything that,

         22  raise the heights of the buildings.  But you know

         23  that is not the truth.  The truth is that we have

         24  12- story buildings, we have 10- story buildings, we

         25  have got 8- story, and we got 6- story, and we have
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          2  a noise pollution problem, and we have a light

          3  problem and a ventilation problem.  So really all we

          4  are asking is for City Planning and City Hall to

          5  just protect us.

          6                 Last month, my last point, my

          7  neighbor, who is an accomplished New York individual

          8  and his wife, and his beautiful daughter are selling

          9  their apartment.  I asked him why, and he just

         10  shakes his head to me and smiles, and says he has

         11  always loved the neighborhood.  He had great plans

         12  for it, but with what is going on, there is no way

         13  that he is bringing up his daughter in this.

         14                 So, City Hall and City Planning, I

         15  ask you not to remove the politics, you know, that

         16  is impossible.  All I am saying is manage them and

         17  just be responsible for your honored positions as

         18  stewards of the public good.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions?

         21  Okay.

         22                 MS. FINLEY:  My name is Susan Finley.

         23    I am the Co Vice- President of the Flatiron

         24  Alliance.  I thank you for the opportunity to be

         25  here today.  Actually, I do not really thank you. I
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          2  have to tell you the truth.

          3                 The truth is I did not even want to

          4  come today, because I have spent 20 years fighting

          5  to try to find some kind of small, minimal amount of

          6  sanity in our neighborhood.  And in the 20 years

          7  that I fought, the one thing I have found, and I

          8  think that everybody knows that we feel this way, is

          9  that enforcement is a joke, perpetuated upon people,

         10  like rats in a maze who go after cheese that is not

         11  there, until finally they give up.  People do not

         12  show up sometimes at Community Board meetings

         13  because they know that the Community Board can say,

         14  we recommend against this, don't do this SLA, and it

         15  does not happen anyway.

         16                 We were told about this meeting

         17  Friday, that is when I learned about it.  Had I

         18  known earlier, even though it was the middle of

         19  summer, I guarantee you the neighborhood would be

         20  sitting here today, despite how badly they have been

         21  treated for the last 20 years.

         22                 And in terms of our elected

         23  representatives telling us that they will take care

         24  of problem clubs, they are not able to take care of

         25  problem clubs.  If they were, we would not be living
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          2  in the nightmare we are living in now.  So it is

          3  ridiculous and ludicrous to hear from Assemblyman

          4  Gottfried, or Councilwoman Quinn, with all due

          5  respect, about how you are going to take care of a

          6  problem we have, when you did not do it before,

          7  because you cannot do it, and the SLA will not do

          8  it.  And you cannot make the SLA do it.

          9                 And everyone has told us for the last

         10  20 years, we will get your zoning changed guys, if

         11  you only get zoned residential, then people will

         12  start to give you the benefits that a residential

         13  tenant should have.  So here we are 20 years later

         14  being told, we are going to zone you residential.

         15  And we go, fantastic, finally the City has realized

         16  that we are reeling, that we cannot take it anymore,

         17  and they are going to give us the rights that

         18  residential tenants have.  And they are not going to

         19  make us show up at more of these meetings and beg

         20  people to give us "enforcement" that changes with

         21  every Mayor, and every Commissioner, and every new

         22  Task Force.

         23                 We are the people who started the

         24  nightlife, the New York Nightlife DOT, you know, do

         25  not park here.  We started it 20 years ago.  We do
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          2  not want to go to another meeting.  We do not want

          3  to write another letter.  We want it to stop.

          4                 And the point is the City, this is,

          5  we are not any old block or any old neighborhood, we

          6  are the worst, most over saturated, liquor licensed

          7  neighborhood in all of New York City. Senator Tom

          8  Duane said that, not me, okay?  We have within the

          9  limelight, which is illegally, I believe, veiling on

         10  a liquor license, we have more than 20 clubs within

         11  with 500 clubs and lounges, liquor licenses within

         12  500 feet.  Yet, they got their liquor license

         13  because the State Liquor Authority pushes things

         14  through in the same way this process is being shoved

         15  down our throats yet again.

         16                 I just do not understand where the

         17  participate, you know, a sixth grader would know,

         18  City Planning, we are going to replan and revisit a

         19  neighborhood.  Who do we talk to about it?

         20  Especially if it is a toxic dump, we go and we look

         21  at it, and we talk to the neighborhood.  We don't do

         22  an environmental impact statement and hire people by

         23  a developer to tell us what we want to hear, and

         24  then go and invade Iraq.  That is not the way we

         25  should be doing things.  Where is our participation
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          2  in this process?  You gave us back something, you

          3  took away, and we are suppose to say thank you.  You

          4  gave us enforcement, we already had enforcement.

          5  Mayor Koch gave us the same thing you are offering

          6  us right now. I shook his hand, my picture was in

          7  the newspaper.  We already had enforcement.  I

          8  worked two years to pass an amendment to the noise

          9  code that is unenforceable.

         10                 The buck has to stop here.  If you

         11  are going to call us residential, then make us

         12  livable, make us habitable.  Don't perpetuate this

         13  hoax upon the new people who are going to plop down

         14  their life savings to move into a place and find out

         15  it is a nightmare.  And it is a nightmare.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions?

         18  Thank you. There is no one else to sign up to speak

         19  on this item, I will close the public hearing.

         20                 MS. GOLDEN:  Oh, can I say one more

         21  thing, I am very sorry.  I neglected to tell why I

         22  handed this to you.  The U O'Neil Building, which is

         23  a beautiful Landmark Building on Sixth Avenue

         24  between 20th and 21st Street has been emptied of

         25  commercial tenants, and is planning to become
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          2  residential, as is the same kind of building on 20th

          3  Street on the East Side.  Both these applications to

          4  become residential are being challenged by the clubs

          5  in the neighborhood.

          6                 That should give you some

          7  understanding of the war that is going on.  So it is

          8  not a question that we are abandoning night life, we

          9  are at war.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am actually

         11  going to make a couple of comments about this

         12  application later on.

         13                 Let's move on, we have sidewalk

         14  cafe's on the agenda.  We go to Land Use Item #

         15  19820045438 TCQ, application by LNC Cafe to

         16  establish, maintain, and operate an unenclosed

         17  sidewalk cafe located at 106- 03 Metropolitan

         18  Avenue.  This lies within Council Member Katz's

         19  District.

         20                 MR. MEHLER:  Good morning.  My name

         21  is Martin Mehler.  I am an attorney, I represent LCN

         22  in the application for a sidewalk cafe.  I have met

         23  with Councilwoman Katz.  We have agreed to cut back

         24  our hours.  We are only going to be open until ten

         25  o'clock at night.  We have agreed to cut back the
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          2  number of seats to 36.  We are deeply sorry and

          3  apologize to Councilwoman Katz, the applicant in

          4  desperation, though it is not excuse, put some

          5  tables and chairs out on the sidewalk prior to the

          6  approval. There is no excuse for that.

          7                 The DCA has, as a matter of fact,

          8  fined the applicant for his actions.  And we are

          9  hoping that we can catch the rest of the summer,

         10  assuming that this Body approves that we can allow

         11  for the 36 chairs to be put out on the sidewalk so

         12  that this cafe, which is merely a conduit for a

         13  movie theater, which is presently at the premises.

         14  So that people after theater can go and enjoy some

         15  coffee, some cake, and be outside.  It is a wide

         16  sidewalk, we are not using most of the sidewalk.  We

         17  have cut back on the number of seats.  And we would

         18  ask that this Body approve the application for the

         19  sidewalk cafe.

         20                 I am also going to allow the owner of

         21  the theater, who is now taking over the operations

         22  of the cafe to address this Body, and to site who he

         23  is, to say that he is going to be the president of

         24  the corporation, and he will be in charge.  We are

         25  also going to give his name, address, to
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          2  Councilwoman Katz, and in the event there is any

          3  problem with this premises, he is the one that is

          4  going to correct the matter, he is the one that is

          5  going to address any potential problem, although

          6  there will not be.  This is a quiet cafe, and we do

          7  not anticipate any problems with the members of the

          8  community.

          9                 MR. NICOLAOU:  My name is Nick

         10  Nicolaou.  I am the owner of the movie theater and

         11  the cafe.  This is a historic theater built in 1925,

         12  and being operated the last independent theater that

         13  has been operating in Queens.

         14                 The cafe is an effort to try to

         15  maintain this quiet neighborhood that the subway is

         16  a mile and a half away.  It serves the residents

         17  mainly of the immediate area.  So we are hoping that

         18  the cafe will help keep the doors open as last

         19  resort to keep going.

         20                 I appreciate if this license is

         21  approved as soon as possible.  We are looking

         22  forward for the summer to put some chairs out to

         23  hopefully help us keep this old theater open.  I

         24  apologize for violating prior to the license.  It

         25  was a desperate measure on a Saturday, Friday night.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

          4  Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Hi, I want to

          6  thank the Committee for the hearing, and also thank

          7  you both for coming down. I want to make it clear to

          8  the Committee, basically the history. Metropolitan

          9  Avenue is in an extremely quiet area in Forest

         10  Hills, in fact, there is no sidewalk cafes.  And

         11  this really would be the first sidewalk cafe that is

         12  approved by this Council, which is why it was so

         13  important to me and to the Community Board, if you

         14  see the conditions of the Community Board's approval

         15  that they end it by ten o'clock.  That means up,

         16  out, inside by ten o'clock.  And also that the 72, I

         17  believe, application seats was reduced to 36.

         18                 The Theater Cafe is a very good part

         19  of my community.  They run a good establishment.

         20  They have been good neighbors.  The gentleman who

         21  was in charge of the cafe is since gone, is my

         22  understanding.  His name was Chris.  His name is on

         23  all the applications.  So there is a slight problem

         24  there, which I am assured by Counsel that we can

         25  sort of figure out how to deal with. But Chris is
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          2  the name on the applications.  But Nick is going to

          3  take responsibility for the sidewalk cafe.

          4                 The attorney and the owner has

          5  assured that by tomorrow, by the end business the

          6  Committee will have a letter that says they will be

          7  up and out by ten, and that there will only be 36,

          8  and that will become part of the application.  And

          9  more importantly for me, it will be part of what

         10  Consumer Affairs will be able to site for in the

         11  future, should they not uphold to their agreement.

         12                 So based on all of that, and this

         13  agreement we have all made, I urge the Committee to

         14  approve the application.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  Any

         16  questions from my Committee members?  Thank you.

         17                 MR. NICOLAOU:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. MEHLER:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Has anybody

         20  signed up to speak on this item?  If not, I will

         21  close the public hearing, and we will move onto Land

         22  Use # 19920045558 TCM, application by GDP

         23  Enterprises, also known as Agozar, to establish,

         24  maintain, and operate a unenclosed sidewalk cafe

         25  located at 324 Bowery.  Is Gerado Perez here from
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          2  the restaurant?  Steve Wygoda.

          3                 While you are getting seated, this

          4  application is within Council Member Alan Gerson's

          5  District, and I know he is here and he wants to make

          6  a statement, so I assume staff is finding him. In

          7  the meantime, proceed.

          8                 MR. WYGODA:  Good morning.  My name

          9  is Steve Wygoda. I am an architect.  I thank you for

         10  allowing us to speak in front of you.

         11                 Agozar is located on, actually fronts

         12  on Bleeker Street and fronts on Bowery at the same

         13  time with the corner establishment separating them.

         14  We have made a proper application, Consumer Affairs

         15  has approved the application as far as all the

         16  guidelines are met.  The ownership, the people that

         17  own, it is a family business, it is a brother and

         18  sister business, and it is something that they

         19  always have had dreams of opening up a family

         20  business for themselves.

         21                 The sidewalk is approximately 20 foot

         22  6 inches wide, it is an extremely wide sidewalk on

         23  Bowery.  We are proposing to use 9 feet of the

         24  sidewalk for five tables and 12 seats.  That would

         25  leave 11 feet, six inches for the public, much more
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          2  than the 8- foot minimum that is required.

          3                 The original application indicated

          4  tables on Bleeker Street.  When we presented this

          5  application to the Community Board Committee, it was

          6  agreed at Committee that we would remove the table

          7  and the seating from Bleeker Street, but keep the

          8  tables and seating on Bowery.  The Committee voted

          9  in favor.

         10                 We did not attend the full Community

         11  Board hearing. I should have known better, I have

         12  been to many of these before. I thought that at

         13  Committee, when we heard the Committee and approved

         14  the Committee that the full Board would confirm the

         15  Committee's vote.

         16                 Several concerns have been raised at

         17  the full Board meeting as far as the type of

         18  establishment that this restaurant is.  It is truly

         19  the handout that you have, that will indicate very

         20  clearly that this is a restaurant that has a bar.

         21  Across the street from this establishment is another

         22  outdoor, sidewalk cafe that has been there legally.

         23                 We also, my office has also applied

         24  for other sidewalk cafes on Bowery, have been

         25  granted sidewalk cafes on Bowery, Pioneer is one of
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          2  them.

          3                 In light of the fact that very

          4  recently the Council and the City has adopted the

          5  new small, sidewalk cafe regulations. I would like

          6  to just take a second to thank the Council for doing

          7  that, and the type of restaurants, and the type of

          8  vibrancy, and as I recall, Chair Burden, talking

          9  about adding some vibrancy and some excitement to

         10  the City.  This is, this restaurant is an ideal type

         11  of restaurant that matches that type of profile.

         12                 We realize that Councilman Gerson is

         13  opposed.  We have tried to reach out to the

         14  Councilman.  We have discussed it with him and we

         15  realize there is some opposition from some local

         16  community groups.  We have tried to reach out to the

         17  community groups, as well.

         18                 We were told by a representative of

         19  the community group that they would be willing to

         20  allow us some seating up until 9:00 p.m. Provided

         21  that I, Steve Wygoda or my office, could obtain a

         22  letter from all of the restaurants on Bowery saying

         23  that they would never file.  Well, that I cannot do,

         24  and I think that that person was fully aware that I

         25  cannot do that.  So we sincerely attempted to
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          2  negotiate some kind of an agreement.  And we would

          3  like to continue to do that.  I have done, my office

          4  has represented over 180 sidewalk cafes, and we

          5  usually can work something out, and we would like to

          6  do the same thing here.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. PEREZ:  Yes, hi. I would like to

          9  thank the Chairman and the Committee for hearing us

         10  today.  My name is Gerado Perez.  I am the co- owner

         11  of Agozar.

         12                 I would just like to start by stating

         13  that in the packet that I have there the Department

         14  of City Planning talking about City sidewalk cafes

         15  adds to the vitality of street life and are

         16  considered by many to be neighborhood amenities.

         17  And you know, we agree, and you know that is what we

         18  are trying to do, we actually are trying to add to

         19  the community.  We are not trying to take away

         20  anything.

         21                 Like Steve mentioned, the history of

         22  this, we appeared before the Committee for the

         23  Community Board, and we were approved.  We have also

         24  been approved by DCA.

         25                 We did receive notice of the
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          2  Committee hearing, which we appeared at and were

          3  approved.  We did not receive a notice of the full

          4  Board meeting, which we were denied.  If we would

          5  have received notice of that, we surely would have

          6  attended and stated our case.

          7                 At that Committee hearing there was

          8  some opposition in reference to us being a bar.  And

          9  in the packet, we are not a bar, I have included in

         10  there our lease, which specifically states that the

         11  use of the restaurant must be a sit down, table

         12  restaurant.  I have included our menus, which I have

         13  also sent letters to Councilman Avella, Councilman

         14  Gerson, Mr. Janisick, including our menus, our

         15  reviews.  We are member of the New York Restaurant

         16  Association, in good standing, that is there as

         17  well. We are a member of NYC and Company, in good

         18  standing.  We have been a part of Tribeca Film Feast

         19  with menus there.

         20                 Basically, we are asking for five

         21  tables for 10 seats, and we actually are just trying

         22  to add, you know, to the community.  We are a

         23  family- owned restaurant.  Our revenues are, I have

         24  financials here, you can see that our revenues are,

         25  come from our dining, not our bar.
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          2                 And again, we have, also, which my

          3  sister will read, we have immediate tenants living

          4  upstairs, two of which have lived in the building

          5  for over 60 years.  And they have been there, I have

          6  spoke to them, and they have been there previous

          7  when the Bowery was not such a great area.  They are

          8  in total agreement with us, we have letters, which

          9  we will read.  Three of the five tenants have

         10  written letters, their phone numbers are on there.

         11  You are more than welcome to speak to them, in

         12  support of our cafe.  And I believe two members of

         13  the Councilman's Office have been to my

         14  establishment, they could possibly inform you of the

         15  use of our restaurant.  I believe they have attended

         16  there, and they had no problems.  Or they might have

         17  problems, I am more than happy to speak to them.

         18                 We have also reached out to the

         19  opposition.  I have sent an email trying to

         20  coordinate a meeting, and we have been unsuccessful.

         21    And again, a member of the Councilman's Office can

         22  attest, he has been trying to coordinate a meeting

         23  with the opposition.  We are more than happy to make

         24  any changes, anything to accommodate.  Again, I just

         25  want to reiterate that we are not a bar, we never
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          2  had a bouncer or anybody at the door.  We have never

          3  had any lines out the door.  I know that there are

          4  other bars and clubs in the area, we are not one of

          5  them.  There is a restaurant located directly across

          6  the street, which has an outdoor cafe, and they are

          7  actually adding to the community, and we feel that,

          8  you know, we should have the same right for that.

          9                 And we believe, and to safety, again,

         10  it was a concern of the two residents, which have

         11  lived there over 60 years. And you know, having a

         12  cafe there, you know, would add to that. And again,

         13  I am more than open in the letters that you have

         14  received that I have sent over with the menus.  I

         15  directed in there that I am more than happy to speak

         16  to the community about it, to make any changes.

         17                 MS. PEREZ:  My name is Diana Perez,

         18  and I am also co-owner of Agozar.  I just want to

         19  add to my brother, what he said that our intention

         20  is only to add to the community.  We started out

         21  prior to even starting the whole project, we boarded

         22  up our walls with soundproof so that there would

         23  never be sound or noise issues with our tenants

         24  above us.  We have always taken, we have always been

         25  active in taking precautions in never aggravating
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          2  our tenants by any way.

          3                 I also would like to read a few of

          4  the letters that were written by our tenants.

          5                 One is by One Bleeker, and it goes as

          6  follows:

          7                  "To Whom It May Concern:

          8                 We have been tenants owners at One

          9  Bleeker Street for one year.  To date, Agozar has

         10  been a very good neighbor, it is the least loud of

         11  the establishments on the Bowery.  They have also

         12  been receptive to any concerns we have.

         13                 If granted, an outdoor cafe, I think

         14  they would oversee it responsibly with little

         15  negative impact on the neighborhood."

         16                 The two following ones are from the

         17  tenants directly above where the outdoor cafe would

         18  be:

         19                  "I reside at 324 Bowery, New York

         20  City, apartment 1, for approximately 64 years.  We

         21  have no problems whatsoever with Agozar Restaurant

         22  or with them having an outdoor cafe."

         23                  "To Whom It May Concern:

         24                 I have lived at 324 Bowery for many

         25  years, and have no objection whatsoever to Agozar
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          2  Outdoor Cafe and Restaurant.  The restaurant owners

          3  and workers are very refine people."

          4                 We also received a letter from our

          5  landlord:

          6                  "Dear Gerado:

          7                 This shall confirm that you are a

          8  tenant in excellent standing with our firm at the

          9  premises known as 324 Bowery in Manhattan.  Please

         10  present this letter to the authority which permits

         11  your use of the sidewalk for cafe purposes.

         12                 We are in support of your

         13  establishment utilizing the sidewalk area for legal

         14  uses since it may enhance your business.  We would

         15  like to point out to the community that you are a

         16  recognized food establishment which will benefit the

         17  citizens of our community with additional restaurant

         18  facilities."

         19                 I also want to point out that on the

         20  left side of the packet is our advertising material.

         21    We have never advertised anything more than a

         22  restaurant.  We are a family- oriented business.  I

         23  live 15 blocks away, own my own property, so I know

         24  how important it is to the City and for the

         25  citizens.  I do not feel that we have ever been
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          2  negligent in owning our restaurant, in not

          3  fulfilling or abiding by the laws.  We never have

          4  had violations, and I just really hope that you will

          5  take all our information of what we have had to say

          6  today into consideration before making your

          7  decision.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. RAJES:  Good morning.  My name is

         10  Emisdio Rajes, and so I would like to add that I

         11  have been working in the restaurant for over a year

         12  as a manager.  And our intention is to help better

         13  the community.  And we would like the people to come

         14  and enjoy our food while sitting outside especially

         15  during the summer time, it would be good for the

         16  community.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before we take

         19  questions, is there one person signed up to speak?

         20  We cannot do it this way, however.

         21                 Council Member Gerson who has a

         22  statement to read in terms of this application.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.  Thank you, my colleagues, it is good to

         25  see all of you.  Actually, rather than read I have a
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          2  statement I will summarize and outline.

          3                 I just want to make a point to my

          4  colleagues that I think this is the second time

          5  since I first took office when I have appeared

          6  before this Subcommittee on sidewalk permit matter,

          7  outdoor sidewalk cafe permit matter.  And given the

          8  fact that I think my district rivals, perhaps

          9  Council Member Quinn's District, as the district

         10  with the greatest number of outdoor sidewalk cafes

         11  per capita, the fact that this is only the second

         12  time, and that I approach this Committee sparingly,

         13  reflects my strong preference, and indeed, my

         14  office's successful track record in facilitating

         15  these permits and working out issues between the

         16  community and the applicants.  That is certainly my

         17  preference, and I think we have a very strong, and

         18  again, the fact that this is only the second time

         19  that I am here, shows that we have a strong track

         20  record in success.

         21                 That is why I am disappointed that I

         22  do have to speak, to ask my colleagues to, at this

         23  point, oppose this application.  I am disappointed

         24  because I did speak with the applicants attorney

         25  last week, when I expressed my strong recommendation
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          2  that the application will be, at least, temporarily

          3  withdrawn to allow the continued discussions and

          4  dialogues to which the witnesses are referenced to

          5  take place, between the applicant and the community,

          6  and the community association.

          7                 Given that that did not happen, and

          8  the applicant is still going forward apparently, I

          9  need to endorse the recommendation of our Community

         10  Board, which overwhelmingly, and I repeat,

         11  overwhelmingly at the full Board meeting rejected

         12  this application.  And I will just briefly summarize

         13  the concerns.

         14                 I will make it clear my colleagues

         15  and Mr. Chair, this is not about the character of

         16  these applicants, or indeed, of this restaurant.

         17  You have heard good things said from neighbors and

         18  from the applicants, and I endorse most, if not all,

         19  of those things.  The issue here is sensitivity to

         20  the location and the spot, and the possible

         21  detrimental impact of a sidewalk cafe, if it is not

         22  the proper limited size.

         23                 Very briefly, this is the location

         24  many of you may know as a location across the street

         25  from CBGBs, you know, similar to the Community
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          2  Development Block Grants, the LMDC, so I am

          3  confusing the, but tremendous late night spill over,

          4  tremendous conjestion on sidewalks, which needs to

          5  be strategized on a more long- term basis.  We, in

          6  fact, this is an area within increasing traffic

          7  congestion.  I have, in fact, have spoken with the

          8  Manhattan Office, the Department of Transportation.

          9  Ms. Forgeonie (phonetic) just returned from

         10  maternity, and we are in agreement on getting

         11  started a traffic study specifically for the

         12  intersections of Bleeker and Bowery, and the turn

         13  off streets adjacent to that intersection, because

         14  of the serious problems to the district by

         15  congestion.  This location is literally next door, I

         16  believe one or two doors beyond, or one or two doors

         17  removed from the historic district, with an

         18  application pending for the historic district. It is

         19  extraordinarily close a couple of feet or less from

         20  a bus stop, from a very heavily used bus stop in the

         21  vicinity.  There is already tremendous on both

         22  Bleeker Street and the Bowery at critical times,

         23  including times when one when expect the sidewalk

         24  cafe to have its greater usage, tremendous sidewalk

         25  congestion.
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          2                 There is also a very serious question

          3  as to the narrowness of the path from the entrance

          4  to the restaurant to the Bowery.  The applicant's

          5  diagram shows three feet, for what they call the

          6  waiter service aisle.  If in fact, you factor the

          7  chairs being pushed out from under the tables, we

          8  believe that three feet is significantly lessoned.

          9  And in fact the aisle is much narrower than in

         10  reality than shown, and that has raised serious

         11  questions.

         12                 My colleagues, I am not saying that

         13  these issues cannot be worked out.  It may very well

         14  be that they can, but for a variety of reasons they

         15  have not yet been worked out.  The community

         16  association from whom you will hear testimony

         17  momentarily and the Community Board remain

         18  overwhelmingly opposed.  And given the sensitivity

         19  and the extreme congestion of this particular

         20  location, again, just to repeat, underscored by the

         21  fact that DOT has agreed to a traffic study at that

         22  precise intersection, it would be irresponsible for

         23  this City Council to allow an additional sidewalk

         24  cafe, and this would be true from any other

         25  applicants that we would receive in that immediate
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          2  vicinity at this time, until we have had a chance to

          3  work out the neighborhood issues in that very

          4  sensitive block, which I ensure you that we are

          5  committed to doing expeditiously.

          6                 So I would reiterate my call to the

          7  applicants to withdraw, at least temporarily.  If

          8  you do not do so, I ask my colleagues to reject this

          9  application.  And I do so, you know, with a heavy

         10  heart, but firm conviction that it is the right

         11  thing to do from Land Use and from protection of

         12  community safety and livability to people played by

         13  excessive noise and congestion already.

         14                 Thank you very much.  I would just

         15  add that when I say people plagued by noise and

         16  congestion, keep in mind that even though is the

         17  Bowery, this is a residential area.  People do live

         18  in the area above, across the street, and adjacent

         19  to the spot where the application is made.  And

         20  those people as reflected by the Community Board

         21  have serious concerns, and overwhelmingly request

         22  that the application be denied at this time.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I know you want

         25  to respond to that.  But I am going to ask one
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          2  question, and then you can respond to what Council

          3  Member Gerson said, and my question.  The staff has

          4  taken a serious look at this application.  And one

          5  of the things that, at least, has not been mentioned

          6  to date, is that based upon your design for where

          7  the tables and chairs will be, they, in fact,

          8  conflict with the emergency fire, what is the word

          9  I'm looking for, escape.  The ladder, when it would

         10  come down, would come down on top of the tables and

         11  chairs.

         12                 Now that to me presents a serious

         13  safety hazard in that in the event of a fire you are

         14  going to be out there moving tables and chairs.  And

         15  you mentioned that the tenants support your

         16  application, I do not think they are aware of this

         17  situation.

         18                 So please respond to what Council

         19  Member Gerson said, and then I would like to know

         20  how you feel that this is not a serious, serious

         21  safety hazard.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Excuse me on

         23  second, Mr. Chair, that, and believe it or not, I

         24  was trying to speak quickly, but that is what I was

         25  referring in my reference to the narrowness of the
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          2  three- foot aisle, both in terms of the on the

          3  grounding rest. But I did not, as I should have

          4  stated, there is that concern over the fire ladder.

          5  So I thank you for pointing that out.

          6                 MR. WYGODA:  Yes, we do have concern

          7  about the egress.  I am an architect, not an

          8  attorney.  I have actually created a passageway

          9  there.  The drop ladder does not, Mr. Avella,

         10  Council member, the way DCA interprets the drop

         11  ladders is that it is on the curb side of the drop

         12  ladder where a person would come down, and there is

         13  adequate space for that to occur.  As well as you

         14  should note, and if there is not, then we will

         15  remove that table, which is fine.

         16                 If the Council feels that it is too

         17  tight, we will take that table away.  It is

         18  agreeable to do that.  There is this restaurant does

         19  have exit on Bleeker, as well.  There is a second

         20  means of egress.  It is a small place, so there are

         21  uniquely two ways out of this restaurant anyway.

         22                 As far as the community or the

         23  residents, this being a residential area, well it is

         24  the residents in the building who are supporting it.

         25    So I do not know how else to respond to that. So
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          2  that is that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

          4  questions?  Sure.

          5                 MR. PEREZ:  Yes, I just wanted to add

          6  that I have checked, in reference to complaints or

          7  any problems with the Community Board, I have

          8  checked with them, I spoke to Florence at Community

          9  Board 2, there are none on file, never had.  We have

         10  been open since December of 2002, and we have never

         11  had a problem at our establishment.

         12                 In reference to the fire exit that

         13  has been noted, our architect has, you know, we also

         14  have another exit on Bleeker Street side, which I do

         15  not know, that is also noted in our plans, but I do

         16  not know if the Committee is aware of that.

         17                 In reference, again, you know there

         18  is a restaurant directly located across the street

         19  that Daily Chow that they have an outdoor cafe, and

         20  we are very open to discussing any other, any

         21  problems.

         22                 But again, you know, I understand the

         23  Community Board 2 full denial, the Committee

         24  approved us.  And the Chairperson of that Committee

         25  was the deciding vote, Lisa LaFreida.
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          2                 In reference to the full Board

          3  meeting, again, I will just have to argue about the

          4  fact that we were denied on that. I have a letter

          5  here stating that our Committee hearing, which we

          6  went to and were approved on.  We never received

          7  such a notice on the full Board hearing which we

          8  were denied.  Again, if we would have been at that

          9  hearing, we would have brought all our arguments.

         10  And again, if there is a question of us closing the

         11  cafe at an earlier time, we are open to discussion

         12  of that.  Anything that the community association

         13  would like to talk about, we have tried to reach

         14  out, Councilman Gerson, I believe Dirk is aware that

         15  we have tried to reach out to talk to them.

         16  However, it is just the end of the summer, and we

         17  are a small business trying to survive in New York

         18  City.

         19                 And that is all, thank you very much.

         20                 MR. WYGODA:  I would like to just

         21  add, Councilman Gerson, after our discussion about

         22  withdrawing, I did speak to DCA about the withdrawal

         23  process, and I did speak to Mr. Janisick about

         24  withdrawing.  And so it is not as thought I did not

         25  pursue that avenue.
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          2                 DCA said that if we withdraw we would

          3  have to reapply brand new.  I spoke to Artie, you

          4  know, Artie Strickland at Board 2 about going back

          5  to the full Board, and also to DCA, Bob Gormley,

          6  about doing that.  They said that legally that

          7  cannot be done on an open application, I tried that.

          8                 I presented these options to the

          9  owners, and the owners have chosen to just continue

         10  with this round.

         11                 MS. PEREZ:  Excuse me, for one of

         12  many reasons it is our financial situation.  To

         13  reapply next year would add more costs.  We wanted

         14  to meet with you and express our concerns, and we

         15  also tried to reach out to Ms. Jones, who at no

         16  point wanted to meet with us, or does want to

         17  negotiate.  She has made it very clear that she is

         18  not open to this, ever.

         19                 So in the future, does not seem a

         20  possibility from her.  So for us to keep continuing

         21  to just wait to maybe, one, for her to decide that

         22  she would like to speak to us, just seems absurd.

         23  We have made several attempts, and she has denied us

         24  and said, "I will never grant this, never be in

         25  favor of it."  Has said it several times.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Unfortunately,

          4  one of the things that we are under a time pressure

          5  here, so we do not have the opportunity to lay this

          6  thing over and discuss this item further.  I just

          7  wanted to mention that.

          8                 Thank you.  Unless there are any

          9  other questions from Committee members.

         10                 We have one speaker on this item,

         11  Zella Jones.

         12                 MS. JONES:  Good morning.  I guess it

         13  is afternoon, so I will be very brief here.  My name

         14  is Zella Jones.  I am Chair of the NoHo Neighborhood

         15  Association.  Our website is NoHoManhattan.org, you

         16  can check our credentials at any time.  We represent

         17  over 500 households, and almost 2,000 residents in

         18  the area of NoHo.

         19                 I am going to pass out to you, number

         20  one, I have only one copy of this, but this is a map

         21  of the area of NoHo, and with an arrow pointing to

         22  the exact location of this particular establishment,

         23  and everything in red is a bar and restaurant.

         24                 The second thing I will pass out to

         25  you are a number of pictures of this particular
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          2  location.  And when you look at these pictures, I

          3  would appreciate your looking at the narrowness of

          4  the space, the lack of sidewalk, the fact that the

          5  tables are not only underneath a fire escape, they

          6  are on top of a cellar egress from that building.

          7  And in particular, I need to point out the entrance

          8  to this restaurant, half of which is a bar, and you

          9  can see how much room there is in the corridor with

         10  a bar on one side, and the bar stools on the other

         11  side, less than two feet in between, and we are

         12  being asked to believe that there will be service of

         13  food after a waitress has traveled 25 feet to the

         14  front of the building and to the street.  I believe

         15  that what is going to happen here is that liquor

         16  will be served.  This applicant has a liquor license

         17  that is up in November of this year.  They will most

         18  likely ask for an auxiliary license going with it to

         19  serve on the sidewalk, and then possibly into the

         20  space next door, which is potentially available for

         21  a bar expansion, thereby, allowing two liquor

         22  licenses in one spot for the simple application of a

         23  sidewalk cafe in summer months when nobody is around

         24  to come and talk to you about it.

         25                 They also applied for their original
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          2  liquor license in the summer without notice to the

          3  Community Board.  As it regards the full Community

          4  Board meeting, it was posted, it is on my web site,

          5  the date was never changed, the full Community Board

          6  meeting is always on the same week of every month,

          7  and they are always open, and nobody was denied any

          8  kind of hearing at the full Community Board 2

          9  meeting.

         10                 I will be very brief, I also have for

         11  you copies of my testimony.  Attached to my

         12  testimony is a spreadsheet that shows 133

         13  establishments that are liquor and food serving in

         14  my neighborhood.  I do not want to get into a fight

         15  with the Ladies Mile or with Ganzavort Market, and

         16  they are also over saturated here.  But it is a

         17  table that shows you all the licenses, all the

         18  expiration of licenses, and in red, attached to the

         19  testimony, all of the establishments that are

         20  contiguous to this particular location.

         21                 I have no personal vendetta against

         22  Agozar or anybody who does business in the

         23  neighborhood.  I am here representing neighbors in

         24  their very building and in the buildings contiguous,

         25  as well as the rest of NoHo.
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          2                 With all due respect for the needs

          3  and investment in this restaurant, the issue of

          4  adding tables to the Bowery Entrance has a variety

          5  of issues of overriding neighborhood concern.

          6                 1.  The addition of tables outside

          7  the door of the bar will add to the liquor

          8  purchasing customers and therefore will obviate a

          9  sidewalk liquor license.  We are opposed to any

         10  additional liquor licenses.  And as I said, they are

         11  up for renewal in November.

         12                 The sidewalk cafes add to noise and

         13  disruption of an already severely compromised noise

         14  and activity level on the street.  There are

         15  seventeen bars and restaurants within a three block

         16  area, forget 500 feet.  We are not even dealing with

         17  500 feet anymore, we know this is laughable.  All of

         18  them want sidewalk cafes, and all of them have long

         19  waiting lines on the street, and all of them have

         20  large smoking areas on the sidewalk already, and we

         21  do not wish to add to the already intolerable

         22  sidewalk cafe.

         23                 In response to the applicants'

         24  mention of a sidewalk cafe next door, there is a

         25  raised balcony at Daily Chow, which is not directly
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          2  across the street.  There have been no sidewalk cafe

          3  licenses granted on the Community Board 2 side of

          4  Bowery.  And I am trying to prevent it.  It is a

          5  Landmark District, we are trying to keep this

          6  activity off the street.  You can read the rest of

          7  this in my testimony.

          8                 One final note, as regards this

          9  neighborhood and its future, at this very moment

         10  there is a 15- story residential tower, the four-

         11  block Aster Square Redevelopment Project now called

         12  Avolon, two 12- story residential condominiums in

         13  construction across the street and in the very same

         14  block as this location, all of them plan bars and

         15  restaurants on the ground floor.  Next door is

         16  another residential condominium with 10,000 square

         17  feet of ground floor retail bar/restaurant space

         18  available.  We are inundated, this starts a

         19  precedent that we need to be strategized.

         20                 I ask that you reject this

         21  application in favor of a longer, strategic, process

         22  for this community.  I have also, to correct

         23  another, I was contacted Wednesday, last week, about

         24  meeting with this applicant.  I was managing a

         25  festival in Arthur Avenue in the Bronx, 5,000 people
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          2  a day.  I told them I could not meet with them until

          3  today.  The meeting of this Council was today. I

          4  have not denied any conversation on this subject.

          5                 Thank you very much for your kind

          6  attention.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  We

          8  have one more item on the agenda, but Council Member

          9  Al Vann has another meeting that he has to attend.

         10  And I would like to call upon him.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.  I regret that I have a commitment that

         13  must be honored.  I ask permission to cast my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  So ordered.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.  I

         16  would like to vote yes, on all of the calendar

         17  items, except number 116 and 199, I cast my vote in

         18  the negative.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Land Use No.

         20  201, which was a sidewalk application by Sushi

         21  Samba.  I understand it is being withdrawn.

         22                 And the last item on the agenda is

         23  Land Use No. 202, an application by Zanzabar to

         24  continue, maintain, and operate an unenclosed

         25  sidewalk cafe located at 645 Ninth Avenue.
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          2                 MR. WYGODA:  Steve Wygoda, I am an

          3  architect for Zanzabar.  We have been in

          4  communication with Council Member Quinn's staff, and

          5  we are agreeable to all the issues that Council

          6  Member Quinn has requested of us.  We will make the

          7  proper revisions to the drawings and submit them to

          8  DCA.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         10  Quinn.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes, I just

         12  wanted to thank the owner and all of their

         13  representatives for having the discussions with my

         14  office.  In the past, there have been some heated

         15  discussions around this.  I am very, very happy that

         16  this time a lot less heated, a lot more forward

         17  moving, and very much appreciate the change that was

         18  made, and the agreement to make sure that those

         19  plans get submitted to DCA and whoever else they

         20  need to be submitted to.

         21                 So I want to thank you, and I just

         22  want to thank --  Hang on just one second.  Oh, I am

         23  sorry, actually I thought we had the updated plans,

         24  we do not.

         25                 MR. WYGODA:  Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So if you

          3  could make sure you get us the revised plans and

          4  DCA, and anybody else?

          5                 MR. WYGODA:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And that would

          7  show that the table, kind of --

          8                 MR. WYGODA:  At the phone booth would

          9  be moved to the other end.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes, exactly.

         11  Okay, so the phone booth, the table by the phone

         12  booth was removed, and we are just moving it to

         13  another location.

         14                 MR. WYGODA:  Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, that is

         16  fine, that is great.  So if you could just get that

         17  to us and DCA, that would be terrific, and as soon

         18  as possible, all the better.

         19                 Thank you all very much.

         20                 MR. WYGODA:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If there is no

         22  one else signed up to speak on this item, I will

         23  close the public hearing.  And we will attempt to

         24  describe the motions that we will be voting on.

         25                 We will actually be doing two
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          2  different motions. One to approve a number of the

          3  applications, and a motion to disapprove

          4  applications, and we will go through them so that

          5  everybody understands.

          6                 The Chair recommends approval on the

          7  resolution amending Resolution 1043, the payphone

          8  resolution.  We will vote in favor of that.

          9                 We will also vote in favor of the

         10  Artopolis and CPC Resources application.

         11                 Voting in favor of the Royal Ranch

         12  Civic Association rezoning applications.

         13                 We will be voting in favor of the

         14  Ladies Mile application.

         15                 Land Use Numbers 114 and 115, Hunters

         16  Point were laid over till August.

         17                 We will be voting Land Use No. 116,

         18  will be part of the disapproved application.  We

         19  will be in effect denying this application.

         20                 We will be voting yes on Land Use No.

         21  136, the Lafayette application.

         22                 We will be voting to approve Land Use

         23  181, which is the Bellerose Rezoning.

         24                 We will be voting to approve the Land

         25  Use No. 198, the sidewalk cafe in Council Member
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          2  Katz's District.

          3                 We will be voting to deny the

          4  application of Land Use No. 199, the sidewalk cafe

          5  application in Council Member Gerson's District.

          6                 Sidewalk Cafe No. 201, Sushi Samba is

          7  being withdrawn, and we will vote in favor of Land

          8  Use 202, the sidewalk application in Council Member

          9  Quinn's District.

         10                 Before I call the vote, I just want

         11  to make a couple of comments on the Ladies Mile

         12  application.  I am very disappointed in some of the

         13  comments that the community made about the ULURP

         14  procedure, and not being, that they were not made

         15  aware of this public hearing until Friday.  It is

         16  very clear that the community knew about this

         17  application, for months.  I certainly received

         18  letters from the community months in advance.  This

         19  certainly was not a surprise, the community has been

         20  in touch everybody in this Committee, and of course,

         21  Council Member Quinn.  And I think the compromise is

         22  that Council Member Quinn has obtained, I think, a

         23  very appropriate for the uses that community wanted

         24  address.

         25                 Is it everything that we would have
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          2  liked to have seen?  No, and you also have to

          3  remember this is a compromise. This is something

          4  that the Committee and the Council worked together

          5  with the Administration, and we do not always get

          6  100 percent of what we want.  But I think the items

          7  that Council Member Quinn was able to obtain go a

          8  long way in addressing the concerns that were, at

          9  least, brought to my attention before this

         10  Committee.

         11                 The Chair recommends approval based

         12  upon the items that I have previously mentioned.

         13  First, we will do the first motion to approve.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  On the motion to

         15  approve:

         16                 Chair Avella.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  If I may be

         20  excused to explain my vote?  First, on the both the

         21  sidewalk cafe items, I want thank to Steve Janisick

         22  and the entire staff for all of their help on that.

         23  You could have a full- time job just doing sidewalk

         24  cafes in my district, so thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mine as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And Alan's

          3  too.  On the Ladies Mile, I also want to thank the

          4  staff very much for all of their help in the matter.

          5    I know that there are many people in the

          6  neighborhood who believe and fear that the action we

          7  are taking is going to make the situation in the

          8  Flatiron area, in the Ladies Mile area worse.

          9                 I am very sorry that people have that

         10  fear, I do not believe that is the case.  We have

         11  worked over a number of months in meetings with the

         12  communities, and follow- up conversations with the

         13  groups that were here today, with the Community

         14  Board, also with the Friends of the Ladies Mile who

         15  has changed their position and is now supportive of

         16  the action that we are taking, to try to flesh out

         17  all of the concerns that were raised and the fears

         18  that are out there, to see what the realistic

         19  possibility that damage could occur was, and to make

         20  changes.  The suggestions that were made, such as

         21  banning, SLA licenses, and things of that nature are

         22  not within the power of this body or in its

         23  totality, or of this Committee.  And I know it is

         24  very frustrating for people to continually go back

         25  to the issue of enforcement, but that is the main
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          2  power and the one that we should use most.

          3                 I do not believe that allowing for

          4  greater residential development in this neighborhood

          5  is in any way, shape, or form going to make the club

          6  problem worse.  Beyond that concerns were raised to

          7  make sure that what get built is appropriate.  I

          8  think that was first and foremost the concern of the

          9  Friends of the Ladies Mile and the other

         10  preservationists, and we worked very hard with City

         11  Planning and at Landmarks Preservation to make sure

         12  that what gets built is very much in the character

         13  of the neighborhood, and we had long discussions

         14  about that.  And I feel very confident in the letter

         15  tomorrow from Landmarks, for the full Committee will

         16  further reiterate this, that what gets built is

         17  going to be in context of the neighborhood.  People

         18  feared, and I understand that what got built would

         19  look like some of things that are getting built

         20  north of 23rd on Sixth Avenue.  That is not the

         21  case, that would not be appropriate there, that was

         22  not neither the interest, I believe, of the

         23  applicants or of City Planning to make this area

         24  look like the area north of 23rd Street.  I think we

         25  have taken many steps to make sure that did not
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          2  happen.

          3                 And we will work very hard to try to

          4  do everything we can to address the existing

          5  problems around quality of life and discos.  And I

          6  think to have all of these agencies convened by the

          7  Administration is different than meetings my office

          8  has convened or other elected officials have

          9  convened.  When you are being called to the table

         10  basically by your boss, it is a stronger command

         11  than we are coming merely at the request of the

         12  elected officials of the area.

         13                 So I hope that a few months from now

         14  we will all see that this was not anything damaging,

         15  but in fact something positive for the neighborhood.

         16    And again, I want to thank the Chair of the

         17  Subcommittee, the Chair of the full Committee, and

         18  all of the staff for their attention and patience on

         19  this matter.

         20                 And I vote aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Baez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Katz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Can I explain

         25  my vote?  I am voting aye on all of these items, and
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          2  then I would like to discuss the disapproval when we

          3  do that.  But just on the pay telephones, as many of

          4  you know, I have great respect for DOITT and the

          5  Commissioner.  I think he has done a very good job.

          6  I think in this particular case though, with the

          7  expansion of what the pay phones are going to be on

          8  the street now, I think it is appropriate that we

          9  give them the 15 years time, and also expand the

         10  definitions of the pay telephones.

         11                 I will just throw out for discussion

         12  in the future that I tried to use one of these

         13  kiosks and I have spoken to the applicants about

         14  this and the lobbyist about this.  I do believe that

         15  it would be a great service to the City if the

         16  kiosks that are going to go up under this new

         17  franchise agreement, would give the City information

         18  for free.  When I was on it I tried to access the

         19  NYC.gov sight, and you have to pay to get that, as

         20  well.  So I would just like to throw out for

         21  discussion in the future and to those listening that

         22  I think it would be a great service to the City

         23  where we can be able to access that information and

         24  tourists to be able to access that information

         25  without any change going into the coffers.
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          2                 Also I want to thank Peter and

          3  everyone on the sidewalk cafe in my district.  It is

          4  a long time coming to this point, and I do think we

          5  have reached a viable agreement with everyone.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 And I vote aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          9  McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Now the motion

         12  to disapprove, the Chair recommends disapproval of

         13  those two items previously mentioned.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         15  Avella.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Quinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I vote aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Baez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Just very

         23  quickly, obviously, we want the Council members to

         24  be part of this process, and I do think it is

         25  important to note that when an applicant comes to
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          2  the City Planning Commission, it is a process to the

          3  Planning Commission, the Community Boards, the

          4  Borough Boards, and City Council.  And with all of

          5  that in mind, I vote aye on the disapproval.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          7  McMahon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  On the motion to

         10  approve the vote stands at 6 affirmative, none in

         11  the negative, and no abstentions. And the motion to

         12  disapprove, the vote stands at 6 in the affirmative,

         13  none in the negative, and no abstentions.

         14                 All items are referred to the full

         15  Land Use Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you,

         17  everyone.  I would like to thank my colleagues for

         18  sitting through what was a very lengthy Committee

         19  meeting.  This closes this meeting on Subcommittee

         20  on Zoning and Franchise.

         21                 And just for the record, Council

         22  Member Al Vann is in favor of those items that we

         23  voted yes on, and the two items he voted no on, are

         24  actually in support of our motion to deny.

         25                 That closes this meeting of the
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          2  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises.

          3                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:33 p.m.)

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            134

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )
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         12                 I further certify that I am not
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